
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
DYDD GWENER, 16 MEHEFIN, 2023 
 
 
 

CYFARFOD CYD-BWYLLGOR PARTNERIAETH 
YN Y SIAMBR, NEUADD Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN, SA31 1JP  

AC O BELL 
 

AM  10.00 YB, 
AR DYDD GWENER, 23AIN MEHEFIN, 2023 

 
 

A G E N D A   
  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   
 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT   
 
3. COFNODION CYFARFOD PARTNERIAETH AR 3 CHWEFROR 

2023  
3 - 6 

 
4. MATERION YN CODI O'R COFNODION (OS OES RHAI)   
 
5. LLYTHYR GAN GADEIRYDD GRŴP CYNGHORWYR CRAFFU 

PARTNERIAETH  
7 - 10 

 
6. CYLLIDEB DDRAFFT PARTNERIAETH AR GYFER 2023-24 A 

CHYNLLUN ARIANNOL TYMOR CANOLIG DRAFFT AR GYFER 
2023-24 HYD AT 2026-27  

11 - 30 

 
7. PERFFORMIAD PARTNERIAETH 2022-23  31 - 68 
 
8. CYNLLUN STRATEGOL/CYNLLUN BUSNES PARTNERIAETH 

2023-24  
69 - 90 

 
9. COFRESTR RISGIAU  91 - 118 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

10. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 
AMGYCHIADAU ARBENNIG, BENDERFYNU EI YSTERIED YN 
FATER BRYS YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972  

 

 
 
 
 
 



(SYLWCH:  MAE’R COFNODION HYN YN AMODOL AR GAEL EI GADARNHAU GAN 
Y CYD-BWYLLGOR YN EI GYFARFOD NESAF) 

 

 

 
 

Cyd-Bwyllgor Partneriaeth 
 

Dydd Gwener, 3 Chwefror 2023 
 

Siambr – Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP ac a bell 
10:02 – 10:52yb 

 
CADEIRYDD: Y Cynghorydd Darren Price, Arweinydd Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin (Aelod â 
phleidlais) 

Aelodau â Phleidlais   

Y Cynghorydd Rob Smith Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg, Sgiliau a Dysgu Gydol 
Oes, Cyngor Abertawe) 

Y Cynghorydd Guy Woodham Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg a Dysgu Gydol Oes, 
Cyngor Sir Penfro) 

Y Prif Weithredwyr  
Mr Martin Nicholls Cyngor Abertawe (Prif Weithredwr Arweiniol) 

Cyfarwyddwyr Addysg  
Mr Gareth Morgans  Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin - Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr Arweiniol 
Mr Steven Richards-Downes Cyngor Sir Penfro - Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr Arweiniol 
Ms. Helen Morgan-Rees Cyngor Dinas a Sir Abertawe (Cyfarwyddwr Arweiniol) 

  
Mr Jonathan Haswell  Swyddog A151 Partneriaeth (Cyfarwyddwr Adnoddau, 

Cyngor Sir Penfro) 
Mr Ian Altman Swyddog Arweiniol Partneriaeth 
Ms. Linda Rees Jones Swyddog Monitro (Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin) 
Mrs Sharen Davies Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru 
Mr Matthew Holder Pennaeth Archwilio Mewnol Partneriaeth (Cyngor Sir 

Penfro) 
Mr. Martin Davies Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin (Gwasanaethau Democrataidd) 
Mrs. Kelly Evans Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin (Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, 

cymryd nodiadau) 
Mrs. Siwan Rees Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin (Cyfieithu) 
Mr. Martin Runeckles Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin (Gwe-ddarlledu) 
Ms. Ruth Lee Rheolwr Busnes Partneriaeth 
Sylwedyddion  
Y Cynghorydd Lyndon Jones Cadeirydd Grŵp Craffu'r Cynghorwyr 
Matthew Jones ESTYN 

Tudalen 3

Eitem Rhif  3



(SYLWCH:  MAE’R COFNODION HYN YN AMODOL AR GAEL EI GADARNHAU GAN 
Y CYD-BWYLLGOR YN EI GYFARFOD NESAF) 

 

 

  
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Wendy Walters (Prif Weithredwr, 
Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin), William Bramble (Prif Weithredwr, Cyngor Sir Penfro), 
Cynghorydd David Simpson (Cyngor Sir Penfro), Cynghorydd Rob Stewart 
(Arweinydd, Cyngor Dinas a Sir Abertawe), Mark Campion (ESTYN) a Karen 
Newby Jones (ESTYN). 
  
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 
ENW EITEM BUDDIANT 
Helen Morgan Rees 5 Enwebwyd ar gyfer Cyfarwyddwr 

Arweiniol 
Martin Nicholls 5 Enwebwyd ar gyfer Prif 

Weithredwr Arweiniol  
  
 

3. COFNODION CYFARFOD PARTNERIAETH AR 7 HYDREF, 2022 
 
PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 7 Hydref 
2022 yn gofnod cywir. 
  
 

4. MATERION YN CODI O'R COFNODION (OS OES RHAI) 
 
17 Hydref, 2022 - Cofnod Eitem 6 
  
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch swyddfeydd, cafodd aelodau wybod bod 
gostyngiad o 50% yn y defnydd o swyddfeydd a byddai un cyfeiriad busnes ar 
gyfer Partneriaeth yn cael ei ystyried. 
 

5. PRIF WEITHREDWR ARWEINIOL PARTNERIAETH A CHYFARWYDDWR 
ARWEINIOL PARTNERIAETH 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL bod: 
  
5.1 Martin Nicholls yn cael ei benodi'n Brif Weithredwr Arweiniol  
5.2 Helen Morgan Rees yn cael ei phenodi'n Gyfarwyddwr Arweiniol 
  
 

6. LLYTHYR GAN GADEIRYDD GRWP CYNGHORWYR CRAFFU 
PARTNERIAETH 
 
Derbyniodd y Cydbwyllgor lythyr gan Gadeirydd y Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu 
Partneriaeth yn adlewyrchu ar y sylwadau yn dilyn cyfarfod diwethaf y Grŵp 
ar y 24 Hydref, 2022. 
  
Bydd cyfarfodydd y Grŵp yn y dyfodol yn cyd-fynd â chyfarfodydd y Cyd-
bwyllgor. 

    

Tudalen 4



(SYLWCH:  MAE’R COFNODION HYN YN AMODOL AR GAEL EI GADARNHAU GAN 
Y CYD-BWYLLGOR YN EI GYFARFOD NESAF) 

 

 

  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn y llythyr.      

   
 

7. ADRODDIAD ARIANNOL PARTNERIAETH 2022-23 (RHAGFYR 2022) 
 
Cafodd y Cydbwyllgor ddiweddariad ar sefyllfa ariannol Partneriaeth ar ddiwedd 
Rhagfyr 2022. 
  
Nodwyd bod yr adroddiad yn rhoi gwybodaeth fanwl benodol mewn perthynas â'r 
canlynol: 
  

         Cytundebau Lefel Gwasanaeth 
         Cyfraniadau Awdurdod Lleol 
         Monitro'r Gyllideb - Rhagfyr 2022 
         Incwm Grant ar gyfer 2022-23 
         Risgiau a Chyfleoedd 
  

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL:- 
  

7.1 bod yr adroddiad ariannol fel yr oedd ym mis Rhagfyr 2022 a'r alldro a 
ragwelir ar gyfer 2022-23 yn cael eu nodi; 
  
7.2 bod y gyllideb ddiwygiedig ar gyfer 2022-23 a'r incwm grant a'r 
dyraniad ar gyfer 2022-23 yn cael eu cymeradwyo 

  
 

8. RHAGLEN WAITH ARCHWILIO MEWNOL 2022-23 
 
Cafodd y Cyd-bwyllgor Raglen Waith Archwilio Mewnol 2022-23 Partneriaeth i'w 
hystyried. 
  
Mae'r Rhaglen Waith yn nodi'r amcanion allweddol, cwmpas, dull gweithredu a’r 
trefniadau adrodd. Datblygwyd y Rhaglen Waith mewn ymgynghoriad â’r 
Cyfarwyddwr Addysg Arweiniol, y Swyddog Adran 151, y Swyddog Monitro a 
Swyddog Arweiniol Partneriaeth. 

Bydd y gwaith maes o ran Archwilio Mewnol yn cael ei gynnal rhwng mis Mawrth a 
mis Mai 2023.  Ar ddiwedd y gwaith maes bydd adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol yn 
cael ei gyhoeddi i'r priod Swyddogion i'w hystyried.  Ar ôl darparu adborth i'r 
Archwiliad Mewnol, bydd yr adroddiad yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cyd-bwyllgor yn ystod 
tymor yr Haf. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am 
Raglen Waith Archwilio Mewnol 2022/23. 
  
 

9. DIWEDDARIAD PARTNERIAETH 
 
Cafodd y Cyd-bwyllgor gyflwyniad gyda'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am ddarpariaeth 
bresennol Partneriaeth. 
  

Tudalen 5



(SYLWCH:  MAE’R COFNODION HYN YN AMODOL AR GAEL EI GADARNHAU GAN 
Y CYD-BWYLLGOR YN EI GYFARFOD NESAF) 

 

 

Yn ystod y chwe mis cyntaf, mae swyddogion Partneriaeth wedi derbyn adborth 
gonest gan swyddogion yr awdurdodau lleol er mwyn mireinio'r ddarpariaeth i 
fodloni anghenion lleol. O ganlyniad, mae ymgysylltu, ymddiriedaeth ac ansawdd 
wedi gwella. Disgwylir y bydd adborth agored ac uniongyrchol rhwng Partneriaeth 
a swyddogion yr awdurdodau lleol yn fuddiol i bawb i lunio dysgu proffesiynol a 
datblygu arweinyddiaeth. 
  
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad a godwyd, dywedodd Swyddog Arweiniol Partneriaeth 
wrth y Cyd-bwyllgor y bydd data yn cael ei ddarparu yn y cyfarfod nesaf i gynllunio 
ar gyfer y dyfodol.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nodi'r diweddariad.   
  
 

10. COFRESTR RISGIAU 
 
Derbyniodd y Cyd-bwyllgor broffil risg cyffredinol y rhanbarth. Nodwyd bod y 
risgiau canlynol o debygolrwydd canolig ac effaith uchel: 
  

         Methu â chefnogi Awdurdodau Lleol mewn meysydd perthnasol yn ystod 
eu hymgysylltiad ag Estyn 

        Prydlondeb Llywodraeth Cymru yn darparu cyllid 
         Diffyg Eglurder o ran swyddogaethau Partneriaeth 

  
Ychwanegwyd sylw arall at Risg Canolog 1 i adlewyrchu'r risg sy'n gysylltiedig â’r 
Cwricwlwm i Gymru. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL:- 
10.1.      Nodi'r proffil risg 
10.2.      Derbyn yr adroddiad risg 
  
 

11. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 
AMGYCHIADAU ARBENNIG, BENDERFYNU EI YSTERIED YN FATER BRYS 
YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972 
 
Nid oedd dim materion brys i'w trafod. 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Tudalen 6



                                                                

 
CYD-BWYLLGOR PARTNERIAETH 

23 MEHEFIN 2023 
 

LLYTHYR GAN GADEIRYDD GRŴP CYNGHORWYR CRAFFU 
PARTNERIAETH 

 
DIBEN:  
 
Bod y Cyd-bwyllgor yn cael y llythyr gan Gadeirydd Grŵp Cynghorwyr 
Craffu Partneriaeth at Gadeirydd y Cyd-bwyllgor sy'n myfyrio ar y 
safbwyntiau yn dilyn cyfarfod diwethaf Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu 
Partneriaeth a gynhaliwyd ar 13 Chwefror 2023. 
 
 
ARGYMHELLION/PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL GOFYNNOL: 
 
Bod y Cyd-bwyllgor yn cael yr ohebiaeth uchod er gwybodaeth, gyda 
rhagor o sylwadau'n ofynnol ar gynnwys y llythyr at Gadeirydd Grŵp 
Craffu Partneriaeth. 
 
RHESYMAU:  
 
Gwybodaeth yn unig 
 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
 
Ian Altman 

Swydd:  
 
Swyddog Arweiniol 
Partneriaeth  

Rhif Ffôn:  
 
E-bost: 
ian.altman@partneriaeth.cymru 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 7

Eitem Rhif  5

mailto:ian.altman@partneriaeth.cymru


                                                                

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

PARTNERIAETH JOINT COMMITTEE 
23 JUNE 2023 

 

 
LETTER FROM CHAIR OF THE PARTNERIAETH SCRUTINY 

COUNCILLOR GROUP 
  
BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To receive the letter for information from the Chair of Partneriaeth Scrutiny Councillor 
Group to the Chair of Partneriaeth Joint Committee reflecting on the views following 
the last meeting of the Partneriaeth Scrutiny Councillor Group on the 13th February 
2023. 

 
 
 

 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Yes 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal  Finance  Risk Management Issues  Staffing Implications 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

 
CONSULTATIONS 

N/A 
 
 

 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection  

N/A N/A N/A 
 

Tudalen 8



 

 
 
At sylw:  

Y Cyng. Darren Price 
Cadeirydd Cyd-bwyllgor Partneriaeth 
 
 

Gofynnwch am: 
 

Y Tîm Craffu 

Rhif Ffôn y Swyddfa  
Craffu: 
 

01792 637256 

e-bost: 
 

craffu@abertawe.gov.uk   
Dyddiad 
 
 

01/03/2023 

 

Annwyl Gynghorydd Price 
 
Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu Partneriaeth – 13 Chwefror 2023 
 
Hoffai'r Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu ddiolch i Ian Altman, y Swyddog Arweiniol, Cressy 
Morgan, Ymgynghorydd Strategol a Helen Morgan Rees, y Cyfarwyddwr Arweiniol, am 
fod yn bresennol yn ein cyfarfod, am gyflwyno'r wybodaeth y gofynnom amdani, ac am 
ateb ein cwestiynau.  Ysgrifennaf atoch i gyfleu ein safbwyntiau o'r cyfarfod hwnnw.  
 
Amlinellodd y Cyfarwyddwr Arweiniol sefyllfa ariannol Partneriaeth, gan roi 
dadansoddiad i ni o'r ffrydiau ariannu, gan gynnwys y cyllid grant, cyfraniadau'r 
awdurdodau lleol a'r cytundebau lefel gwasanaeth sydd ar waith.  Sicrhaodd y Panel 
hefyd fod y trefniadau llywodraethu yn gweithredu'n unol â'r cytundeb cyfreithiol, gan 
gynnwys y Cyd-bwyllgor, Craffu a chyfarfodydd rheolaidd â rhanddeiliaid.    
 
Roedd gennym ddiddordeb mewn clywed am yr adroddiad gwerthuso ac effaith sy’n 
cael ei ysgrifennu ar hyn o bryd, gan ddeall y bydd yn amlinellu meysydd megis gwerth 
am arian Partneriaeth (hyd yn hyn), ac y bydd hwn yn cael ei gyflwyno i’r Cyd-bwyllgor 
ym mis Mehefin.  Edrychwn ymlaen at weld hwn pan fydd ar gael. Nodwyd bod 28 
aelod o staff bellach yn cael eu cyflogi gan Partneriaeth, sy'n sylweddol is na'r nifer a 
gyflogwyd gan ERW. 
 
Adolygwyd hefyd y Gofrestr Risgiau, a nododd Ian Altman un gwelliant a oedd yn 
cryfhau'r sylw ynghylch blaenoriaeth un a'r risg uwch na fyddai ysgolion yn cael digon 
o gymorth i weithredu'r cwricwlwm newydd. Cafwyd trafodaeth, ac roeddem yn 
bryderus pan glywsom am y risg na fyddai cyllid grant Llywodraeth Cymru yn dod 
drwodd ar amser, oherwydd yn amlwg mae Partneriaeth yn dibynnu ar y grant hwn.  
Fodd bynnag, roedd clywed bod yr arian yn tueddu i ddod drwodd mewn modd amserol 
yn gysur mawr. 
 
Mynegwyd pryder gennym am effaith dyfarniad cyflog llwyth gwaith Llywodraeth Cymru 
a’i effaith bosibl ar amser addysgu.  Rydym yn deall nad oes unrhyw fanylion ar gael 
ar hyn o bryd, ond byddem yn gwerthfawrogi cael ein diweddaru wrth i hyn fynd 
rhagddo a chael gwybod am yr effaith bosibl y bydd yn ei chael yn ein hysgolion. 
 
Fel yr amlinellwyd yn ein llythyr diwethaf, cytunwyd i gael diweddariad ar weithredu 
chwe blaenoriaeth allweddol Partneriaeth, un ym mhob un o'n cyfarfodydd.  Yn y 

Tudalen 9

mailto:craffu@abertawe.gov.uk


Darperir Cymorth Craffu Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu Partneriaeth gan Gyngor Abertawe 
Cysylltu: Y Tîm Craffu, Ystafell Caerloyw, Neuadd y Ddinas, Abertawe SA1 4PE 
 01792 637256 
 scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk  
 

cyfarfod hwn, dechreuwyd gyda Blaenoriaeth Un: Cwricwlwm ac Asesu, cefnogi 
cwricwlwm cenedlaethol sydd â thegwch a rhagoriaeth yn greiddiol iddo sy'n gosod 
safonau uchel i bob dysgwr. Rhoddodd Cressy Morgan ac Ian Altman fanylion i ni am 
y cynnydd yn hyn o beth, gan gynnwys edrych ar y modd y mae’n llifo trwy’r Cynllun 
Busnes a’r cynnig Dysgu Proffesiynol.  Trafodwyd pa mor llwyddiannus y bu'r gwaith 
clwstwr mewn rhai ardaloedd, a dangoswyd tair enghraifft o hyn i ni. Rydym yn 
cydnabod bod yna heriau gwahanol ar draws y clystyrau gwahanol, felly ni fydd un ateb 
yn addas i bawb, ac mae'n ymddangos mai cymysgedd o gymorth cyffredinol a 
chymorth pwrpasol sydd fwyaf effeithiol.  Roeddem yn falch o glywed bod ymagwedd 

hyblyg ac ystwyth yn cael ei mabwysiadu wrth gefnogi pob clwstwr.  
 
Roeddem hefyd am bwysleisio pwysigrwydd mynd â phob athro ar y daith i weithredu’r 
Cwricwlwm i Gymru newydd, gan gydnabod natur ragnodol yr hen gwricwlwm a’r 
sgiliau sy'n ofynnol ar gyfer y Cwricwlwm Newydd, a allai fod yn heriol i rai sydd wedi 
arfer â’r hen system.   
 
Roedd y Grŵp Cynghorwyr am gydnabod a diolch i staff Partneriaeth am eu gwaith 
caled wrth ddatblygu ethos gwaith tîm gyda'r ysgolion, yn enwedig mewn perthynas â 
chyflwyno'r Cwricwlwm i Gymru newydd. 
  
Byddem yn croesawu eich barn ar gynnwys y llythyr hwn, ond ni fydd ymateb 
ysgrifenedig ffurfiol yn ofynnol ar yr adeg hon. 
 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 
 
Y Cynghorydd Lyndon Jones 
Cadeirydd Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu Partneriaeth 
Cllr.lyndon.jones@swansea.gov.uk  

Tudalen 10

mailto:scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk
mailto:Cllr.lyndon.jones@swansea.gov.uk


                                                                

 
CYD-BWYLLGOR PARTNERIAETH 

23 MEHEFIN 2023 
 

CYLLIDEB DDRAFFT PARTNERIAETH AR GYFER 2023-24 
A CHYNLLUN ARIANNOL TYMOR CANOLIG DRAFFT AR 

GYFER 2023-24 HYD AT 2026-27 
 

DIBEN:  
 
Darparu Cyllideb Ddrafft Partneriaeth ar gyfer 2023-24, ynghyd â’r Cynllun 
Ariannol Tymor Canolig ar gyfer 2023-24 hyd at 2026-27, i Gyd-bwyllgor 
Partneriaeth, a chael ei gymeradwyaeth ar gyfer y ddau.  
 
ARGYMHELLION/PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL GOFYNNOL: 
 
• Bod cynnwys yr adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 
• Bod y Gyllideb Ddrafft ar gyfer 2023-24 yn cael ei chymeradwyo. 
• Bod y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig ar gyfer 2023-24 hyd at 2026-27 yn 

cael ei gymeradwyo. 
• Bod y Cytundebau Lefel Gwasanaeth ar gyfer 2023-24 yn cael eu 

cymeradwyo. 
• Bod y cyfraniad o'r gronfa wrth gefn ar gyfer 2023-24, yn gyfnewid am 

gyfraniadau'r Awdurdod Lleol, yn cael ei gymeradwyo. 
• Bod y defnydd o'r £1.492 miliwn, sef y cronfeydd wrth gefn a'r balansau 

oddi wrth ERW i greu balans gweithio Partneriaeth o £0.100 miliwn a 
chronfa wrth gefn Partneriaeth o £1.392 miliwn, yn cael ei gymeradwyo. 

 
RHESYMAU:  
 

Gofyniad Cytundeb Cyfreithiol Partneriaeth (Atodlen 9, paragraff 3). 
 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
 
Jon Haswell 

Swydd:  
 
Swyddog A151 Partneriaeth 
 

Rhif Ffôn: 01437 775836 
 
E-bost: 
jonathan.haswell@pembrokeshir
e.gov.uk 

 
 

Tudalen 11

Eitem Rhif  6

mailto:jonathan.haswell@pembrokeshire.gov.uk
mailto:jonathan.haswell@pembrokeshire.gov.uk


                                                                

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
PARTNERIAETH JOINT COMMITTEE 

23 June 2023 
 

PARTNERIAETH DRAFT BUDGET FOR 2023-24 
AND DRAFT MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN (MTFP) FOR 

2023-24 TO 2026-27 
 

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The Partneriaeth Legal Agreement (Schedule 9, paragraph 3) states ‘The 
Partneriaeth via the Lead Council with responsibility for Finance, shall provide a 
draft Annual Budget to the Joint Committee for approval before the start of the 
following Financial Year’. 

 

In order to comply with the Partneriaeth Legal Agreement, the Draft Budget for 
2023-24 was approved ‘in principle’ by the Joint Committee with formal approval 
to be obtained at the Joint Committee meeting on 23 June 2023.  An email was 
sent to the Joint Committee Members on 27 March 2023 with each Member 
confirming their ‘in-principle’ approval. 

 

The Draft Budget for 2023-24 and the Draft MTFP for 2023-24 to 2026-27 have 
been developed in consultation with the Lead Officer Partneriaeth and the three 
Education Directors.   
 

Since the ‘in-principle’ approval by the Joint Committee, there have been a 
number of changes to the Draft Budget following the 18 May 2023 confirmation 
of Welsh Government funding for 2023-24: 
 

• RCSIG funding was less than anticipated due to the Welsh in Education grant 
element of the EIG being delegated directly to Local Authorities, so the budget 
for Business Plan Objectives has been amended accordingly. 

 

• Confirmation of secondment income from Welsh Government, this also being 
reflected in the staffing costs budget. 

 

• Confirmation of changes to the staffing structure and recalculation of staffing 
costs. 

 

At the ERW Joint Committee on 17 May 2023, approval was given to distribute 
£1.492m of the ERW reserves and balances to Partneriaeth. 

 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

Tudalen 12



                                                                

 
 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal  Finance  Risk Management Issues  Staffing Implications 

NONE 
 

YES YES YES YES 

1. Legal  
 
As outlined in the Partneriaeth Budget for 2023-24 and MTFP for 2023-24 to 2026-
27. 

2. Finance 
 
As outlined in the Partneriaeth Budget for 2023-24 and MTFP for 2023-24 to 2026-
27. 

3. Risk Management 
 
As outlined in the Partneriaeth Budget for 2023-24 and MTFP for 2023-24 to 2026-
27. 

4. Staffing Implications 
 
As outlined in the Partneriaeth Budget for 2023-24 and MTFP for 2023-24 to 2026-
27. 

 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
None. 

 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection  

N/A N/A N/A 
 

Tudalen 13



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 
 

 
 

Partneriaeth Draft Budget for 
2023-24 and Draft Medium Term 

Financial Plan (MTFP) for 2023-24 
to 2026-27 

 
 

Partneriaeth S151 Officer 
 
 
 
 

March 2023 
(Revised June 2023) 

Tudalen 15



1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The report presents the Joint Committee with the Partneriaeth Draft 
Budget for 2023-24 and the Draft MTFP for 2023-24 to 2026-27. 

1.2 The Partneriaeth Legal Agreement (Schedule 9, paragraph 3) states 
‘The Partneriaeth via the Lead Council with responsibility for 
Finance, shall provide a draft Annual Budget to the Joint Committee 
for approval before the start of the following Financial Year’. 

1.3 In order to comply with the Partneriaeth Legal Agreement, the Draft 
Budget for 2023-24, see Appendix A, was approved ‘in principle’ by 
the Joint Committee with formal approval to be obtained at the Joint 
Committee meeting on 23 June 2023.  An email was sent to the Joint 
Committee Members on 27 March 2023 with each Member 
confirming their ‘in-principle’ approval. 

1.4 The Draft Budget for 2023-24 and the Draft MTFP for 2023-24 to 
2026-27 have been developed in consultation with the Lead Officer 
Partneriaeth and the three Education Directors. 

1.5 Since the ‘in-principle’ approval by the Joint Committee, there have 
been a number of changes to the Draft Budget following the 18 May 
2023 confirmation of Welsh Government funding for 2023-24, see 
4.2 below.   

 

2.0 Service Level Agreements (SLA’s) 

2.1 The SLA’s have been increased by CPI of 7% for 2023-24, CPI of 
4% for 2024-25 and CPI of 2% for 2025-26 to 2026-27. 

2.2 As in 2022-23, there is no charge for the services of the Partneriaeth 
Lead Chief Executive, Partneriaeth S151 Officer, Partneriaeth 
Monitoring Officer or the Partneriaeth Lead Education Director. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 16



2.3 The proposed SLA’s for 2023-24 and over the MTFP are outlined 
below: 

*Includes the Partneriaeth Principal Accountant and Accounting Technician posts 

 

3.0 Local Authority Contributions 

3.1 The element of the Partneriaeth budget funded by Local Authority 
contributions has been determined based on the estimates and 
assumptions outlined in 4.3 below. 

3.2 In previous years, Local Authority contributions have increased to 
match the overall increase in expenditure.  However, due to the 
significant financial challenges faced by each Local Authority in 
2023-24 and over the MTFP, it is proposed that there is no Local 
Authority contribution for 2023-24, reduced contributions for 2024-
25 and 2025-26, and a return to a full contribution for 2026-27. 

3.3 Due to the level of reserves and balances transferred to Partneriaeth 
following the cessation of ERW, see 6.0 below, it is felt that the 
reduction in contributions over the MTFP can be funded from 
reserve without a significant depletion of reserve levels. 

 

SLA’s 
2022-23 

£’000 

2023-24 

£’000 

2024-25 

£’000 

2025-26 

£’000 

2026-27 

£’000 

Committee Services 
(Carmarthenshire) 5 5 6 6 6 

Scrutiny (Swansea) 5 5 6 6 6 

Finance* (Pembrokeshire) 121 130 134 137 140 

Internal Audit (Pembrokeshire) 26 28 29 29 30 

Human Resources 
(Pembrokeshire) 6 7 7 7 7 

Information Technology 
(Pembrokeshire) 31 33 34 35 36 

Procurement (Pembrokeshire)  20 21 22 23 23 

Total Budgeted SLA’s 214 229 238 243 248 

Tudalen 17



3.4 Individual Local Authority contributions are calculated in accordance 
with the Partneriaeth Legal Agreement (Schedule 9, paragraph 4) 
based on PLASC figures (80%) and the number of schools within 
each Local Authority area (20%). 

3.5 The proposed Local Authority contributions/contributions from 
reserve for 2023-24 and over the MTFP are outlined below: 

 

 
 
 
4.0 Draft Budget for 2023-24 

4.1 The Draft Budget for 2023-24, both income and expenditure, has 
been determined based on the estimates and assumptions outlined 
in 4.3 below. 

4.2 Since the ‘in-principle’ approval by the Joint Committee, see 
Appendix A, there have been a number of changes to the Draft 
Budget following the 18 May 2023 confirmation of Welsh 
Government funding for 2023-24: 

• RCSIG funding was less than anticipated due to the Welsh in 
Education grant element of the EIG being delegated directly to 
Local Authorities, so the budget for Business Plan Objectives has 
been amended accordingly. 
 

• Confirmation of secondment income from Welsh Government, 
this also being reflected in the staffing costs budget. 

 
• Confirmation of changes to the staffing structure and 

recalculation of staffing costs. 
 

Local Authority 
2022-23 

£’000 

2023-24 

£’000 

2024-25 

£’000 

2025-26 

£’000 

2026-27 

£’000 

Carmarthenshire 107 

Pembrokeshire 65 

Swansea 128 

0 124 241 358 

Contribution from Reserve 0 335 224 112 0 

Total Contributions 300 335 348 353 358 

Tudalen 18



4.3 The proposed Draft Budget for 2023-24 is outlined below: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's

Staffing Costs

Salaries*
As per Salary Calculator Inflation 
Factors - 2,023 2,023

Secondments
4% per annum - as per Soulbury pay 
scales - 81 81

Travel & Subsistence 0% - 10 10
Training and Development 0% - 5 5

- 2,119 2,119
Development and Running Costs
Rent and Accommodation CPI - 7% 15 - 15
Electricity 154% as per PCC Inflation Factors 2 - 2
Service Charges CPI - 7% 11 - 11
Hardware Purchases CPI - 7% 22 - 22
Software CPI - 7% 10 - 10
Mobile Telephone CPI - 7% 5 - 5
General Office Expenses Not inflated 7 - 7
Translation CPI - 7% - 40 40
External Audit CPI - 7% 16 - 16
Other Contracted Services 48 48
Marketing CPI - 7% 18 - 18
Service Level Agreements CPI - 7% 229 229
Business Plan Objectives - 3,501 3,501

335 3,589 3,924

Estimated Total Expenditure 335 5,708 6,043

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's
Member Local Authority Contributions - - -

Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant Funding RCSIG 
As per Award Letter received on 
18/05/2023 - 4,326 4,326

Grant Funding RCSIG EIG Retained - 842 842

PDG Co-ordinator
Assumed the PDG Co-ordinator 
Allocation within the PDG remains 
flat lined

- 50 50

Education Workforce Council (EWC)
Assumed the EWC Funding remains 
flat lined - 381 381

Secondment Income from Welsh Government 109 109
From Reserves 335 335
Estimated Total Income 335 5,708 6,043

* Core salaries funded by RCSIG EIG Retained

Budgeted Income

2023-24

Budgeted Expenditure Assumptions of Increases

Tudalen 19



5.0 Draft MTFP for 2023-24 to 2026-27 

5.1 A MTFP has been produced for Partneriaeth to outline its financial 
sustainability over the medium term, to provide financial projections 
for the next four years and to determine the anticipated level of 
funding available for the Business Plan objectives for the next four 
years.  

5.2 The Draft Budgets for 2024-25 to 2026-27, both income and 
expenditure, have been determined based on the estimates and 
assumptions outlined in 5.4 below. 

5.3 The MTFP for 2023-24 to 2026-27 will be subject to change as 
estimates and assumptions are confirmed and it will be formally 
updated on an annual basis. 

5.4 The proposed Draft Budgets for 2024-25 to 2026-27, included in the 
MTFP, are outlined below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 20



 
 

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's

Staffing Costs

Salaries*
As per Salary Calculator Inflation 
Factors - 2,204 2,204

Secondments
As per Soulbury pay scale inflation 
used in Salary Calculator 4% 55 55

Travel & Subsistence 0% 10 10
Training and Development 0% - 5 5

- 2,274 2,274
Development and Running Costs
Rent and Accommodation CPI 4% 16 - 16
Electricity Decrease as per PCC Inflation Factors -11.60% 2 - 2
Service Charges CPI 4% 11 - 11
Hardware Purchases CPI 4% 23 - 23
Software CPI 4% 10 - 10
Mobile Telephone CPI 4% 5 - 5
General Office Expenses Not inflated 7 - 7
Translation CPI 4% - 42 42
External Audit CPI 4% 17 - 17
Other Contracted Services CPI 4% - 50 50
Marketing CPI 4% 19 - 19
Service Level Agreements CPI 4% 238 - 238
Business Plan Objectives** - 3,348 3,348

348 3,440 3,788

Estimated Total Expenditure 348 5,714 6,062

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's
Member Local Authority Contributions 124 - 124

Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant Funding RCSIG 
Assumed the RCSIG remains flat 
lined - 4,326 4,326

Grant Funding RCSIG EIG Retained - 842 842

PDG Co-ordinator
Assumed the PDG Co-ordinator 
Allocation within the PDG remains 
flat lined

- 50 50

Education Workforce Council (EWC)
Assumed the EWC Funding 
remains flat lined 381 381

Secondment Income from Welsh Government 115 115
From Reserves 224 224
Estimated Total Income 348 5,714 6,062

* Core salaries funded by RCSIG EIG Retained
**  Efficiency savings will have to made to the Business Plan Objectives if grant funding remains flat lined. This is due to inflationary pressures 
across other budget lines.

Budgeted Income

2024-25

Budgeted Expenditure Assumptions of Increases
Percentage 

increase/ 
decrease

Tudalen 21



 
 

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's

Staffing Costs

Salaries*
As per Salary Calculator Inflation 
Factors - 2,303 2,303

Secondments
As per Soulbury pay scale inflation 
used in Salary Calculator 4% 57 57

Travel & Subsistence 0% 10 10
Training and Development 0% - 5 5

- 2,375 2,375
Development and Running Costs
Rent and Accommodation CPI 2% 16 - 16
Electricity as per PCC Inflation Factors 0% 2 - 2
Service Charges CPI 2% 11 - 11
Hardware Purchases CPI 2% 23 - 23
Software CPI 2% 10 - 10
Mobile Telephone CPI 2% 5 - 5
General Office Expenses Not inflated 7 - 7
Translation CPI 2% - 43 43
External Audit CPI 2% 17 - 17
Other Contracted Services CPI 2% - 51 51
Marketing CPI 2% 19 - 19
Service Level Agreements CPI 2% 243 - 243
Business Plan Objectives** - 3,250 3,250

353 3,344 3,697

Estimated Total Expenditure 353 5,719 6,072

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's
Member Local Authority Contributions 241 - 241

Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant Funding RCSIG Assumed the RCSIG remains flat lined - 4,326 4,326

Grant Funding RCSIG EIG Retained - 842 842

PDG Co-ordinator
Assumed the PDG Co-ordinator 
Allocation within the PDG remains flat 
lined

- 50 50

Education Workforce Council (EWC)
Assumed the EWC Funding remains 
flat lined 381 381

Secondment Income from Welsh Government 120 120
From Reserves 112 112
Estimated Total Income 353 5,719 6,072

* Core salaries funded by RCSIG EIG Retained
**  Efficiency savings will have to made to the Business Plan Objectives if grant funding remains flat lined. This is due to inflationary pressures 
across other budget lines.

Budgeted Income

2025-26

Budgeted Expenditure Assumptions of Increases
Percentage 

increase/ 
decrease

Tudalen 22



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's

Staffing Costs

Salaries*
As per Salary Calculator Inflation 
Factors - 2,401 2,401

Secondments
As per Soulbury pay scale inflation used 
in Salary Calculator 4% 59 59

Travel & Subsistence 0% 10 10
Training and Development 0% - 5 5

- 2,475 2,475
Development and Running Costs
Rent and Accommodation CPI 2% 16 - 16
Electricity as per PCC Inflation Factors 0% 2 - 2
Service Charges CPI 2% 11 - 11
Hardware Purchases CPI 2% 23 - 23
Software CPI 2% 10 - 10
Mobile Telephone CPI 2% 5 - 5
General Office Expenses Not inflated 7 - 7
Translation CPI 2% - 44 44
External Audit CPI 2% 17 - 17
Other Contracted Services CPI 2% - 52 52
Marketing CPI 2% 19 - 19
Service Level Agreements CPI 2% 248 - 248
Business Plan Objectives** - 3,152 3,152

358 3,248 3,606

Estimated Total Expenditure 358 5,723 6,081

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's
Member Local Authority Contributions 358 - 358

Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant Funding 
RCSIG Assumed the RCSIG remains flat lined - 4,326 4,326

Grant Funding RCSIG EIG Retained - 842 842

PDG Co-ordinator
Assumed the PDG Co-ordinator 
Allocation within the PDG remains flat 
lined

- 50 50

Education Workforce Council (EWC)
Assumed the EWC Funding remains flat 
lined 381 381

Secondment Income from Welsh Government 124 124
From Reserves - -
Estimated Total Income 358 5,723 6,081

* Core salaries funded by RCSIG EIG Retained
**  Efficiency savings will have to made to the Business Plan Objectives if grant funding remains flat lined. This is due to inflationary pressures 
across other budget lines.

Budgeted Income

2026-27

Budgeted Expenditure Assumptions of Increases
Percentage 

increase/ 
decrease

Tudalen 23



6.0 Working Balance and Reserves 

6.1 At the cessation of ERW, there were reserve balances of £0.678m 
and EWC balances of £0.958m remaining. £0.144m of these 
balances relate to Powys County Council and will be returned to 
them, leaving a balance of £1.492m.  At the ERW Joint Committee 
on 17 May 2023, approval was given to distribute £1.492m of the 
ERW reserves and balances to Partneriaeth. 

6.2 It is proposed that £0.100m of the balance is utilised as the 
Partneriaeth working balance with the remaining £1.392m utilised 
as the Partneriaeth reserve. 

6.3 The proposed movements in the working balance and reserve for 
2023-24 and over the MTFP are outlined below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Working Balance 
2022-23 

 
£’000 

2023-24 

 
£’000 

2024-25 

 
£’000 

2025-26 

 
£’000 

2026-27 

 
£’000 

Opening Balance 100 100 100 100 100 

Utilised in Year 0 0 0 0 0 

Closing Balance 100 100 100 100 100 

Reserve 
2022-23 

 
£’000 

2023-24 

 
£’000 

2024-25 

 
£’000 

2025-26 

 
£’000 

2026-27 

 
£’000 

Opening Balance 1,392 1,392 1,057 833 721 

Utilised in Year 0 335 224 112 0 

Closing Balance 1,392 1,057 833 721 721 

Tudalen 24



7.0 Risks and Opportunities 

7.1 Continued reliance on grant funding remains a risk for Partneriaeth. 

7.2 The previous risk around a working balance and reserve for 
Partneriaeth has now been mitigated, as outlined in 6.0 above. 

 

8.0 Recommendations 

8.1 The contents of the report are noted. 

8.2 The Draft Budget for 2023-24 is approved. 

8.3 The Draft MTFP for 2023-24 to 2026-27 is approved. 

8.4 The SLA’s for 2023-24 are approved. 

8.5 The contribution from reserve for 2023-24, in lieu of the Local 
Authority contributions, is approved. 

8.6 Utilisation of the £1.492m reserves and balances from ERW to 
create a Partneriaeth working balance of £0.100m and a 
Partneriaeth reserve of £1.392m is approved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 25



Appendix A 

 

Partneriaeth Draft Budget for 2023-24 and Draft MTFP 2023-24 to 
2026-27 Approved ‘In Principle’ 

 

 
 

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's

Staffing Costs

Salaries*
As per Salary Calculator Inflation 
Factors - maintaining the same 
staffing structure

- 1,924 1,924

Secondments
4% per annum - as per Soulbury pay 
scales - assuming the same 
Secondments

- 152 152

Travel & Subsistence 0% - 10 10
Training and Development 0% - 5 5

- 2,091 2,091
Development and Running Costs
Rent and Accommodation CPI - 7% 15 - 15
Electricity 154% as per PCC Inflation Factors 2 - 2
Service Charges CPI - 7% 11 - 11
General Office Expenses Not inflated 7 - 7
Mobile Telephone CPI - 7% 5 - 5
Translation CPI - 7% - 40 40
Hardware Purchases CPI - 7% 22 - 22
Software CPI - 7% 10 - 10
Marketing CPI - 7% 18 - 18
Service Level Agreements CPI - 7% 229 - 229
External Audit CPI - 7% 16 - 16
Business Plan Objectives - 3,943 3,943

335 3,983 4,318

Estimated Total Expenditure 335 6,074 6,409

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's
Member Local Authority Contributions - - -

Regional Consortia Grant Funding (RCG) Assumed the RCG remains flat lined - 4,802 4,802

Grant Funding RCG EIG Retained 4.02% of the EIG Grant - 841 841

PDG Co-ordinator
Assumed the PDG Co-ordinator 
Allocation within the PDG remains 
flat lined

- 50 50

Education Workforce Council (EWC)
Assumed the EWC Funding remains 
flat lined - 381 381

From Reserves 335 335
Estimated Total Income 335 6,074 6,409

* Core salaries funded by RCSIG EIG Retained

Budgeted Income

2023-24

Budgeted Expenditure Assumptions of Increases

Tudalen 26



 
 

 

 

 

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's

Staffing Costs

Salaries*

As per Soulbury and NJC Salary 
Calculator Inflation Factors - 
maintaining the same staffing 
structure

- 2,034 2,034

Secondments
4% per annum - as per Soulbury 
pay scales - assuming the same 
Secondments

4% 158 158

Travel & Subsistence 0% 10 10
Training and Development 0% - 5 5

- 2,207 2,207
Development and Running Costs
Rent and Accommodation CPI 4% 16 - 16
Electricity Decrease as per PCC Inflation Factors -11.60% 2 - 2
Service Charges CPI 4% 11 - 11
General Office Expenses Not inflated 7 - 7
Mobile Telephone CPI 4% 5 - 5
Translation CPI 4% - 42 42
Hardware Purchases CPI 4% 23 - 23
Software CPI 4% 10 - 10
Marketing CPI 4% 19 - 19
Service Level Agreements CPI 4% 238 - 238
External Audit CPI 4% 17 - 17
Business Plan Objectives** - 3,825 3,825

348 3,867 4,215

Estimated Total Expenditure 348 6,074 6,422

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's
Member Local Authority Contributions 124 - 124

Regional Consortia Grant Funding (RCG) 
Assumed the RCG remains flat 
lined - 4,802 4,802

Grant Funding RCG EIG Retained - 841 841

PDG Co-ordinator
Assumed the PDG Co-ordinator 
Allocation within the PDG remains 
flat lined

- 50 50

Education Workforce Council (EWC)
Assumed the EWC Funding 
remains flat lined 381 381

From Reserves 224 224
Estimated Total Income 348 6,074 6,422

* Core salaries funded by RCSIG EIG Retained

2024-25

Budgeted Expenditure Assumptions of Increases
Percentage 

increase/ 
decrease

**  Efficiency savings will have to made to the Business Plan Objectives if grant funding remains flat lined. This is due to inflationary 
pressures across other budget lines.

Budgeted Income

Tudalen 27



 
 

 

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's

Staffing Costs

Salaries*
As per Soulbury and NJC Salary 
Calculator Inflation Factors - 
maintaining the same staffing structure

- 2,127 2,127

Secondments
4% per annum - as per Soulbury pay 
scales - assuming the same 
Secondments

4% 164 164

Travel & Subsistence 0% 10 10
Training and Development 0% - 5 5

- 2,306 2,306
Development and Running Costs
Rent and Accommodation CPI 2% 16 - 16
Electricity as per PCC Inflation Factors 0% 2 - 2
Service Charges CPI 2% 11 - 11
General Office Expenses Not inflated 7 - 7
Mobile Telephone CPI 2% 5 - 5
Translation CPI 2% - 43 43
Hardware Purchases CPI 2% 23 - 23
Software CPI 2% 10 - 10
Marketing CPI 2% 19 - 19
Service Level Agreements CPI 2% 243 - 243
External Audit CPI 2% 17 - 17
Business Plan Objectives** - 3,725 3,725

353 3,768 4,121

Estimated Total Expenditure 353 6,074 6,427

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's
Member Local Authority Contributions 241 - 241

Regional Consortia Grant Funding (RCG) Assumed the RCG remains flat lined - 4,802 4,802

Grant Funding RCG EIG Retained - 841 841

PDG Co-ordinator
Assumed the PDG Co-ordinator 
Allocation within the PDG remains flat 
lined

- 50 50

Education Workforce Council (EWC)
Assumed the EWC Funding remains 
flat lined 381 381

From Reserves 112 112
Estimated Total Income 353 6,074 6,427

* Core salaries funded by RCSIG EIG Retained

2025-26

Budgeted Expenditure Assumptions of Increases
Percentage 

increase/ 
decrease

**  Efficiency savings will have to made to the Business Plan Objectives if grant funding remains flat lined. This is due to inflationary 
pressures across other budget lines.

Budgeted Income

Tudalen 28



 

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's

Staffing Costs

Salaries*
As per Soulbury and NJC Salary 
Calculator Inflation Factors - maintaining 
the same staffing structure

- 2,219 2,219

Secondments
4% per annum - as per Soulbury pay 
scales - assuming the same 
Secondments

4% 171 171

Travel & Subsistence 0% 10 10
Training and Development 0% - 5 5

- 2,405 2,405
Development and Running Costs
Rent and Accommodation CPI 2% 16 - 16
Electricity as per PCC Inflation Factors 0% 2 - 2
Service Charges CPI 2% 11 - 11
General Office Expenses Not inflated 7 - 7
Mobile Telephone CPI 2% 5 - 5
Translation CPI 2% - 44 44
Hardware Purchases CPI 2% 23 - 23
Software CPI 2% 10 - 10
Marketing CPI 2% 19 - 19
Service Level Agreements CPI 2% 248 - 248
External Audit CPI 2% 17 - 17
Business Plan Objectives** - 3,625 3,625

358 3,669 4,027

Estimated Total Expenditure 358 6,074 6,432

Core 
Funded

Grant 
Funded Total

£000's £000's £000's
Member Local Authority Contributions 358 - 358

Regional Consortia Grant Funding (RCG) Assumed the RCG remains flat lined - 4,802 4,802

Grant Funding RCG EIG Retained - 841 841

PDG Co-ordinator
Assumed the PDG Co-ordinator 
Allocation within the PDG remains flat 
lined

- 50 50

Education Workforce Council (EWC)
Assumed the EWC Funding remains flat 
lined 381 381

From Reserves -
Estimated Total Income 358 6,074 6,432

* Core salaries funded by RCSIG EIG Retained

2026-27

Budgeted Expenditure Assumptions of Increases
Percentag
e increase/ 
decrease

**  Efficiency savings will have to made to the Business Plan Objectives if grant funding remains flat lined. This is due to inflationary 
pressures across other budget lines.

Budgeted Income

Tudalen 29



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



                                                                

 
CYD-BWYLLGOR PARTNERIAETH 

23 MEHEFIN 2023 
 

PERFFORMIAD PARTNERIAETH 2022-23 
 

DIBEN:  
 
Darparu trosolwg o'r ddarpariaeth a'r perfformiad trwy gydol cylch Cynllun 
Busnes 2022-23 i Gyd-bwyllgor Partneriaeth.  
 
ARGYMHELLION/PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL GOFYNNOL: 
 
Bod y Cyd-bwyllgor yn nodi'r diweddariad ac yn derbyn yr adroddiad. 
 
 
RHESYMAU:  
 
Sicrhau bod blaenoriaethau rhanbarthol yn cael eu cyflawni yn unol â 
disgwyliadau cyllido RCSIG. 
 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Ian Altman 
 

Swydd:  
Swyddog Arweiniol, 
Partneriaeth 
 

Rhif Ffôn:  
 
E-bost: 
ian.altman@partneriaeth.cymru 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 31

Eitem Rhif  7



                                                                

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
PARTNERIAETH JOINT COMMITTEE 

23 JUNE 2023 
 

 
PARTNERIAETH PERFORMANCE 

 
BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The report reflects the level of support currently offered by Partneriaeth in line with the Legal 
Agreement. Partneriaeth is currently offering a good range of support in line with 
expectations. The areas in need of further development and identified in the report. 
 
Partneriaeth is offering an appropriate range of support for its schools and local authorities 
(LA) This is evidenced in a range of stakeholder groups as well as strong collaborative 
working with LA colleagues. Officers are providing suitable bespoke support for schools and 
clusters.  
 
The Business Plan is monitored quarterly and Partneriaeth has delivered expectations set out 
in the Business Plan. Areas for development and resources are regularly discussed as 
agenda items as part of the Director Strategy Group. 
 
During the first twelve months of Partneriaeth as a regional service, senior officers have 
continued to receive honest feedback from LA officers in order and have refined provision 
where appropriate. As a result, engagement, trust and quality has improved. It is expected 
that ongoing open and direct feedback between LA and Partneriaeth officers will be mutually 
beneficial to shape professional learning and leadership development. 
 
The annual report reflects engagement and performance across all areas of delivery. There is 
evidence of the impact of the work on practitioners in many cases and officers are currently 
ensuring that the professional learning offer for 2023-24 has clear performance indicators and 
also includes the ability to capture the impact on learners when and where appropriate. 
 

 
 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Yes 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 32



                                                                

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal  Finance  Risk Management Issues  Staffing Implications 

NONE NONE YES YES YES 

1. Finance 
 
Areas in report directly relate to BP are linked to Welsh Government funding  

 
2. Risk Management 

 
Report includes areas linked to the Risk Management process 

 
3. Staffing Implications 

 
The report reflects the current capacity within the organisation and additional 
support will be discussed with Directors of Education when appropriate. 

 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
N/A 
 

 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection  

N/A/ N/A N/A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



ANNUAL
REPORT

PARTNERIAETH

20
22

-2
3

Tudalen 35



-2-

Contents
Lead Officer Introduction                                     		 03

Finance overview                                                    		 04

Engagement overview                                           		 05

Priority 1: Curriculum and Assessment		   	 08

Priority 2: Improving Teaching and Learning		  14

Priority 3: Leadership and Career Development   	 21

Priority 4: Strong Inclusive Schools		   	 28

Priority 5: Self Improving Systems			   	 31

Priority 6: Ensure that Partneriaeth has strong 
governance and effective business and operational 
support that provides value for money		   	 33

Cross-Regional Working                                    		  34

Cluster Working                                                     		  07

Tudalen 36



-3-

Lead Officer Introduction
2022-23 was the first year of Partneriaeth as a regional service to support schools in Carmarthenshire, 
Pembrokeshire and Swansea. It is an exciting and challenging time for education in Wales and I am proud 
of the range of support on offer to professionals in our region and also appreciate the need to refine the 
offer further for 2023-24 and ensure continued collaboration and co-construction.

This annual report focuses on providing stakeholders with an overview of engagement and impact linked to the 2022-
23 Business Plan as well as a financial overview to ensure maximum transparency.

Partneriaeth officers have been focused on providing a range of professional learning and bespoke and targeted 
support for leaders and practitioners in order to support the national priorities linked to:

•	 Curriculum and Assessment
•	 Developing a high-quality education profession
•	 Leadership / Career Pathways
•	 Strong and Inclusive Schools
•	 Self-improving system

The report is separated into the areas of the business plan 
and summarises the range of professional learning developed 
and delivered by Partneriaeth and engagement across our three 
local authorities. Where appropriate, the work is evaluated in 
terms of practitioner feedback and a number of case studies 
have been developed to be published during the summer 
term to reflect impact of the work in schools. In many cases 
the impact of the professional learning on learners has 
yet to be seen as leaders and practitioners develop their 
understanding of priorities such as 3-16 progression.

Each area has clearly defined next steps, and these have 
informed the business planning process for 2023-24.

As schools begin to refine and develop their thinking 
regarding Curriculum for Wales, our commitment is to provide 
high-quality professional learning and bespoke support to 
continue to meet the needs of schools across the region.

Overview of Partneriaeth Region

           Ian Altm
an: Lead Officer

PEMBROKESHIRE
Chief Executive: Will Bramble
Director: Steven Richards-Downes
Senior Improvement Adviser: Elin Fry

SCHOOLS	      	 LEARNERS
Primary: 52	      	 (2020-21)
Secondary: 8	      	 17,504
Special: 1

Senior Strategic
Adviser:

Greg Morgan

CARMARTHENSHIRE
Chief Executive: Wendy Walters
Director: Gareth Morgans
Strategic Lead for School Effectiveness: 
Elin Forsyth

SCHOOLS	      	 LEARNERS
Primary: 94	      	 (2020-21)
Secondary: 12	      	 27,999
Special: 2

Senior Strategic
Adviser:

Gwennan Schiavone

SWANSEA
Chief Executive: Martin Nicholls
Director: Helen Morgan-Rees
Principal School Improvement Adviser: 
David Thomas (Interim)

SCHOOLS	     	 LEARNERS
Primary: 77	      	 (2020-21)
Secondary: 14	      	 36,154
Special: 2

Senior Strategic
Adviser:

Cressy Morgan

Tudalen 37



-4-

Financial overview
RCSIG Funding 2022-23

Regional consortia funding is provided by Welsh 
Government via the Regional Consortia School 
Improvement Grant (RCSIG) to support a range of 
priorities across the region.

RCSIG Allocated 2022-23

Partneriaeth is committed to delegating funding to 
ensure that it is targeted appropriately.

The target for 2022-23 was that 90% of funding was 
delegated to schools and local authority partners.

RCSIG Delegation Rates 2022-23

The delegation rate is variable for each area of the RCSIG, 
depending on specific T&Cs and where staffing and 
running of business plan costs are allocated.

PDG 2022-23

PDG funding is delegated to support learners in our 
schools. A small amount is retained to support delivery 
of a range of professional learning in our schools as well 
as a regional post.

Tudalen 38



-5-

Engagement overview

There has been a significant take up of Partneriaeth’s 
professional learning offer in 2022-23 as well as 
significant bespoke and targeted work at school and 
cluster level.

All events are evaluated and follow-up activities 
are undertaken where appropriate to develop an 
understanding of the impact of the work in the 
classroom.

This work will continue into 2023-24 with the 
development of a range of high-quality case studies.

Total number of days support for region

SwanseaPembrokeshire Carmarthenshire

Local authority schools as a percentage of the region

Support days per authority

Pembrokeshire 23%

Swansea 35%

Carmarthenshire 42%

Tudalen 39



-6-

Next steps
Where next steps and case studies have been identified, they will be captured by the following icons:

Collaboration and co-construction

Partneriaeth are committed to working in a collaborative way with key partners and providing 
opportunities to co-construct professional learning and support.

Sharing effective practice

Partneriaeth recognises that one of the unique benefits of regional working is the ability 
to share effective practice beyond local authority boundaries. All officers in Partneriaeth 
are expected to contribute to the development of case studies and opportunities to share 
effective practice.

Taking learning into the classroom

Additional ‘into the classroom’ resources are sometimes made available  as mechanism 
for supporting the education workforce to apply the knowledge / skills they acquire at 
professional learning events when they return to their school/setting.

Tudalen 40



-7-

A total of £1,272,280 was allocated directly to the 33 clusters across Partneriaeth (based on PLASC figures) specifically 
to support schools and clusters with implementation of Curriculum for Wales. In addition to this £10,000 each was 
allocated to the PRU Network and Special Schools’ Network that operate across the region. This funding has enabled 
collaborative working across the cluster and supported clusters to develop, review and refine their curriculum design 
process and develop a shared understanding of 3-16 progression.

Pembrokeshire clusters £267,531

Carmarthenshire clusters £431,448

Swansea clusters £553,320

PRU network £10,000

Special Schools’ network £10,000

There are already strong examples of effective cluster working in each local authority and these have been shared with 
improvement advisers in order to exemplify this emerging work. (See 1.3). The development of cluster case-studies on 
the Partneriaeth sharing platform will further strengthen this. However, there is further work to establish a clear and 
visible strategy for cluster working across the partnership and this will be co-constructed with School Improvement 
Advisers (SIAs).

33 cluster and 2 networks of schools exists across Partneriaeth

Cluster Funding 2022/23

Cluster working
Cluster working is a key feature of the implementation of Curriculum for Wales and the regional funding has supported 
this work in order for schools to develop a shared understanding of key elements of 
curriculum design, 3-16 progression and assessment.
 
Funding has been allocated to each cluster for them to support their own priorities and work with Partneriaeth staff to 
engage in Professional Learning on, for example, 3-16 progression conversations. All schools/clusters have provided 
a plan for their priority areas and have evaluated this plan throughout the year and, in most cases, this was supported 
by School Improvement Advisers.

A regional cluster link officer from Partneriaeth has been established for all clusters across the region.  The PRU and 
Special Schools networks have also been allocated cluster link officers to ensure that there is equity of support across 
all settings.

All cluster link officers are in contact with their partner schools and a majority have attended cluster meetings. This 
engagement has been well-received and is improving visibility of the support and enabling clusters to have focussed 
conversations. However, a minority of clusters are still at the early stages of this way of working and will require 
additional time to develop a culture of cluster level collaboration. In addition, a few schools/clusters have been slow 
to engage in the process and senior officers will continue to work in a co-ordinated way in order to develop strong 
relationships. This will be strengthened through joint planning with LA colleagues. 

Tudalen 41



-8-

Priority 1: Curriculum and 
Assessment

1.	 CURRICULUM DESIGN
2.	 PROGRESSION
3.	 ASSESSMENT
4.	 NETWORKS
5.	 BESPOKE SUPPORT / SCHOOLS CAUSING CONCERN

1.1 CURRICULUM DESIGN                                                                                                              

Curriculum for Wales requires schools to design their own curriculum and assessment arrangements.  Curriculum 
design is an ongoing, cyclical process of engagement, design, planning, trialling, and evaluation.  

Partneriaeth supports schools with their curriculum design through a range of synchronous and asynchronous 
professional learning opportunities, resources and networking as well as targeted and bespoke support where 
appropriate.

All schools and settings have access to Partneriaeth’s 
Curriculum for Wales website which has had over 7,000 
views. The website complements and supports the 
synchronous professional learning offer available from 
Partneriaeth. All support and professional learning are 
organised around a five-point cyclical design model 
which guides users through the mandatory elements 
of the curriculum guidance framework.  The focus of 
professional learning in 2022-23 was progression for 
learning (see 1.2) and Partneriaeth has been working with 
practitioners across the region planning for the next stage 
‘organising the learning’ ready for delivery in 2023-24. 
This professional learning will run alongside opportunities 
for schools with furthest to travel to revisit sessions and 
have bespoke support developed to meet their needs.

1.1.1 Curriculum Design Model

Partneriaeth has funded practitioners to contribute to 
curriculum development and design working groups. 
Partneriaeth’s lead for Expressive Arts (EA) has funded 
8 practitioners across the disciplines for 4 days each to 
form a small working party to map out how learning can 
be planned and organised across the AoLE. Funding 
has also been provided to a practitioner to add capacity 
support for the planning and delivery of the primary EA 
network. Three schools have been funded for 4 days each 
to support with develop progression maps for the Design 
and Technology thread of learning. Twenty three schools 
have been part of a Maths and Numeracy Assessment 
Working Group. Two practitioners have been funded to 
support with elements of the Health and Well-being AoLE: 
developing an understanding of physical literacy (12 days) 
and using the HAPPEN survey to identify needs (8 days). 
One primary school was funded for 4 days to contribute to 

1.1.2 Curriculum Development Working Groups
Curriculum Design Model

Curriculum Website Traffic 2022-23 Tudalen 42



-9-

Priority 1: Curriculum and 
Assessment 

Schools and settings in the Partneriaeth region have benefitted from having the support of a seconded practitioner 
from Swansea with expertise in RSE and RVE. The Relationships and Sexuality Education (RSE) Code sets out the 
mandatory learning in RSE and must be encompassed in the teaching of RSE. Professional learning with a focus on 
RSE legislation has been provided for practitioners, leaders and governors. There has also been a focus on engaging 
with parents and the wider community.

Religion, Values and Ethics (RVE) sits within the Humanities AoLE and is mandatory for all pupils from 3-16. Professional 
Learning with a focus on the RVE legislation has been provided for practitioners, leaders and governors. As RVE is a 
locally determined subject the agreed syllabus specifies what should be taught within each LA and training has also 
been provided on this. Opportunities to share emerging practice have also been provided. As a result, schools have 
increased confidence in delivery of RVE.

Both areas of professional learning have been extremely positively, and delegates have valued the opportunity to 
collaborate and access further bespoke support. As a result, networks have gathered momentum and schools are 
developing their provision at an appropriate pace.

1.1.3 Relationships and Sexuality Education (RSE) / Religion, Values and Ethics (RVE)

During the summer term 2022 Partneriaeth ran online progression workshops for each of the AoLEs and a majority 
of schools from across the region sent delegates to the sessions with nearly all clusters being represented. The 
workshops were designed to provide clarity around the mandatory elements of Curriculum for Wales which need to be 
adhered to when planning for 3-16 progression.  

Many of the delegates stated that the workshop was effective/very effective at explaining the mandatory principles 

1.2.1 Progression Workshops

the Humanities primary network and another school received 4 days funding to create a case study on the curriculum 
design process to be shared across networks. Two practitioners have been funded for 4 days each to support with 
Languages Literacy and Communication primary network and progression workshops.

As a result of this work, Partneriaeth have built positive working relationships with a cohort of practitioners from 
across the region and have been able to draw upon their expertise. This collaboration has resulted in the development 
of both resources and professional learning opportunities shared and made available to all schools and settings. It has 
also enabled practitioners to engage in professional dialogue with colleagues with schools beyond their clusters and 
local authorities.

Next steps: 
Continue to collaborate and co-construct with practitioners.

Next steps: 
Develop RSE/RVE case studies to share effective practice

1.2 PROGRESSION                                                                                                           

Developing a shared understanding of progression is critical to ensuring coherence, smooth transitions, and appropriate 
pace and challenge across a school or cluster. The process of curriculum design should determine what knowledge, 
skills and experiences will support learners to progress both in the short term and over time, and how these should be 
sequenced.

Tudalen 43



-10-

Priority 1: Curriculum and 
Assessment 

Termly progression working groups for each AoLE commenced in the autumn term 2023 and there are 55 practitioners 
from across all phases and settings signed up to them, representing many clusters across the region. Schools have 
been funded to cover supply costs to ensure that there is consistency of membership in the groups throughout the 
year. The focus of these working groups is to engage in professional dialogue to develop a shared understanding of 
3-16 progression within an AoLE, develop an understanding of the importance of progression in learning in order to 
design a cohesive curriculum and develop exemplar materials to be shared locally and regionally.

Delegates leave the sessions with practical ‘take aways’ that they can share back at school and exemplars they can use 
as reference when they develop further progression threads as part of their curriculum design process. For example, 
all group members were provided at the end of the first session with an AoLE related summary of the Principles of 
Progression and a process model for selecting the learning from the mandatory Statements of What Matters. 

Feedback from the workshops has been positive. Nearly all attendees stated that the workshops were pitched at the 
right level, that the content was relevant and that they anticipated that they would have a positive impact on their 
planning and practice in both the short and longer term. Feedback was used to identify priorities for subsequent 
workshops. 

However, there is a need to prioritise sharing of the effective practice across the region. Where there have been 
relatively few delegates at sessions, communication has been reviewed and discussions have taken place with SIAs. 
Cluster working will provide further opportunities to develop progression conversations and we are optimistic that the 
collaborative work between the region and local authorities will allow cluster strategy to gather pace as we move into 
2023-24 and for cluster working to be the delivery mechanism, where appropriate.

1.2.2 Progression Working Groups

of progression and the role that progress plays in curriculum design. Many stated that they felt the session would 
have a positive impact on their practice. However, some of the feedback comments highlighted the need to return to 
face-to-face training and time for sufficient time for discussion and practical tasks. A few noted that they were at a 
slightly different phase of their understanding of progression and what it means in their context. In response to this, 
Partneriaeth ensured that officers contacted schools to offer more bespoke support and have further discussions on 
professional learning moving forward. As a result of this initial training, progression working groups were set up and 
will continue to refine their understanding of progression and share across the region during 2023-24.

Next steps: 
Work with LAs to identify and support schools/clusters with furthest to travel re 
progression 

Next steps: 
Collate and share approaches to developing a shared understanding of progression 
across the AoLEs through case studies / Partneriaeth sharing event

Tudalen 44



-11-

Priority 1: Curriculum and 
Assessment 

Partneriaeth delegated £45,000 to fund Local Authority level approaches to professional dialogue and developing 
a shared understanding of progression across a 3-16 continuum. Swansea and Pembrokeshire commissioned an 
external provider to facilitate cluster level working to supplement the curriculum design work already established 
by Partneriaeth. Attendance was good at the workshops and every cluster had representation. As a result of these 
workshops many clusters are now working more collaboratively.  Carmarthenshire co-constructed progression days 
with Partneriaeth for each AoLE covering the mandatory elements of Curriculum for Wales. Attendance at these 
sessions was good and feedback was positive. However, further work is needed to ensure that there is a consistent 
approach to progression within clusters.

1.2.2 Progression Working Groups

Next steps: 
Work closely with Local Authorities to ensure approaches are aligned                                                                          

1.3 ASSESSMENT                                                                                                           

The purpose of assessment in Curriculum for Wales is to support the progression of each learner in relation to the 
3-16 continuum. This marks a significant shift in the role of assessment which is no longer to be used as part of an 
accountability system linked to high stakes performance measures.

Partneriaeth developed sessions to explain and contextualise this drawing 
upon the assessment guidance. In addition, Partneriaeth also developed 
and delivered a session for head teachers on assessment arrangements 
with regards to termly reporting to parents. 

Partneriaeth has provided a comprehensive professional learning offer in 
response to the new emphasis on using assessment to support teaching 
and learning. In collaboration with curriculum and assessment expert Mike Gershon, Partneriaeth has developed a  
three-part programme of professional learning aimed at developing teaching practices around high-quality formative 
assessment in the classroom. 

The sessions have been designed and developed to support schools in their curriculum implementation and developing 
learner effectiveness through: metacognition; questioning and assessment for learning. The workshops provided 
practical opportunities to enhance practitioners’ approaches to assessment.

There was strong engagement in these sessions and most clusters across Partneriaeth attended these sessions with 
63 schools being represented across all phases and funding was available to support schools with supply costs 

to attend the training and ensure subsequent sharing on a cluster basis. 
Twenty-seven clusters had representation,  of these 18 clusters had more 
than one school attending. As a result of the training delegates had a better 
understanding of high-quality approaches to assessment and were able to 
critically reflect on assessment practices in their own schools/classrooms. 
Delegates were also provided with a range of practical AfL strategies and 
resources to support developments in the quality of teaching and learning. 

All attendees agreed or strongly agreed that the training improved their 
knowledge of the subject, the content was appropriate to their needs and skill level, the content was relevant to their 

“These sessions really helped 
develop my thinking around 
questioning and I am going to 
develop a whole school questioning 
strategy alongside AFL.”  

“Being able to discuss the strategies 
with practitioners form other LAs 
was really useful and I am looking 
forward to the ‘Into the classroom’ 
approach so we can measure learner 
impact.“

Tudalen 45



-12-

Priority 1: Curriculum and 
Assessment 

role.  Nearly all attendees commented that the training provided content that was useful to their roles and skill level. 
Nearly all attendees said that they would recommend the training events to others. However, clusters where only one 
school attended may need more ongoing support in cascading the information effectively moving forward.

Next steps: 
A cohort of schools have received receive funding to share how they have applied 
learning in their teaching

1.4 NETWORKS                                                                                                         

Working with other settings and engaging in on-going professional dialogue provides important opportunities for 
practitioners and leaders to share learning in order to support improvement. 

Partneriaeth has continued to run termly secondary networks for heads of 
department in Welsh 1st language, Welsh 2nd language, English, maths, 
science, geography, history, religious studies and Post – 16. All network 
meetings have consistent messages and guidance on how to support 
improvement and focus on teaching and learning 

Most secondary school attend these valuable sessions and nearly all 
attendees strongly agree that the sessions meet their needs, allow them 
to collaborate effectively and give the space and time to share effective 

practice. They value the opportunity to shape the agendas of these meetings and, in a few cases, the sessions lead to 
more bespoke support from secondary specialists in Partneriaeth when appropriate. For example, working with new 
middle leaders to improve self-evaluation and improvement planning.

Partneriaeth introduced primary networks for AoLE leads in the autumn 
term 2022. Forty seven schools from 22 clusters attended the 90-minute 
online introductory AoLE sessions. The aim of these initial sessions was 
to improve understanding of curriculum design and leadership within an 
AoLE. The sessions also serve as a forum for sharing practice and building 
support networks. However, the networks are still in their infancy and, as 
yet, impact in the classroom cannot be evidenced.

One of the challenges that Partneriaeth officers had when running these sessions was the range of points practitioners 
were at with their curriculum design journeys. As a result, not all attendees felt that the content was pitched at 

an appropriate level and this was reflected in the feedback comments. In 
order to address this the second network meetings in the spring term were 
face to face and allowed time for practitioners to collaborate with peers at 
a similar stage of their curriculum journey. All attendees agreed or strongly 
agreed that the training content was relevant to their roles as AoLE leads 
and nearly all stated that they felt it would have a positive impact on their 
practice. However, number of attendees was not consistent across the 
AoLEs and LLC had to postpone due to staffing challenges.

Next steps: 
Further promote the primary networks via SIAs and cluster link officers 

“As always, it was an excellent 
opportunity to get some guidance 
and also to hear what has worked in 
other schools.” 

“Absolutely vital information.”

“These meeting have been the 
only support in planning the new 
curriculum, so I am very grateful.”

“It was great to have some guidance 
as to how to use the progression 
steps alongside descriptions of 
learning to follow ‘threads’ through 
the course. ”

Tudalen 46



-13-

Priority 1: Curriculum and 
Assessment 

1.5 BESPOKE SUPPORT / SCHOOLS CAUSING CONCERN                                                                                                      

In partnership with local authorities, Partneriaeth officers support the small number of schools in Estyn follow-up 
category or in need of specific level of support. For example, Partneriaeth officers have supplemented the multi-agency 
approach to support schools and have delivered targeted support for departments and middle/senior leadership in 
these schools. In secondary settings, a specific support plan is developed with clear targets to ensure sharp focus on 
the key areas identified, for example self-evaluation processes and teaching in the core subjects.

This approach is well-established in the secondary sector and the region benefits from a well-established and respected 
team across a number of subjects. The process allows for frequent high-quality conversations to be held with schools 
as well the opportunity for the local authority and school to hold the region to account. 

Senior Partneriaeth officers attend a range of strategic groups across the local authorities and discuss, with confidence, 
the impact of the regional work. 

A similar approach is also used, where appropriate, in primary settings. However, the process is less formalised and 
established. Conversations with local authority staff have allowed schools to be grouped together to focus on specific 
areas such as literacy and numeracy and develop a joint understanding of strong practice. However, the region needs 
to be more responsive to these requests and further clarity on senior roles within the organisation will be beneficial to 
local authorities and schools. As a result of this, one senior officer will oversee bespoke support to ensure timely and 
targeted support.

Tudalen 47



-14-

Priority 2: Improving Teaching 
and Learning

1.	 SKILLS
2.	 MFL
3.	 CYMRAEG
4.	 POST 16 IMPROVEMENT

2.1 SKILLS                                                                                                             

Partneriaeth provides strategic support for several key areas that align with national  priorities to develop teaching and 
learning across the curriculum. 

Partneriaeth has co-ordinated and established networking and professional learning opportunities that focus on driving 
improvements in the teaching and leadership of literacy and numeracy in schools.  Literacy and numeracy coordinator 
meetings have been established for secondary settings. Primary AoLE networks have been established and, in the 
future, will focus on how to develop literacy and numeracy in authentic, disciplinary contexts. 

Beneficial termly meetings between Partneriaeth and LA literacy and 
numeracy leads have taken place. Officers have collaborated and developed 
a draft operational plan to ensure that Primary Oracy funding is utilised 
effectively delivering appropriate and contextualised support for schools. 
This work will be developed with LA officers to ensure consistency and 
coherence.
   
Partneriaeth has provided 
bespoke literacy and 
numeracy support to schools. 

The brokerage between LA officers and Partneriaeth is effective. However, 
officer capacity both within Partneriaeth and across the 3 LAs is potentially 
an issue and there is a need for greater collaboration in order to utilise 
resources effectively. This will be addressed through joint planning and 
delivery of the regional grant funding in 2023-24

Literacy and numeracy conferences have been planned for the summer term and will focus on strategies to ensure 
effective approaches to cluster/secondary/primary skills development which drive high quality teaching and learning. 
Partneriaeth schools that have been identified as having practice worth sharing will present alongside experts in the 

field including David Didau, Dr Debbie Morgan and Christopher Such.  
  
In addition to the conferences, Partneriaeth has developed other open offer 
professional learning opportunities to develop approaches to writing and 
vocabulary development. Eleven schools took part in a ‘No More Marking’ 
programme with a focus on standardising and improving understanding 
of what effective writing looks like from 3-16. Resources, messages and 
findings from the programme will be shared in the summer term via network 

meetings and Partneriaeth case studies. Partneriaeth has worked closely with practitioners and local authority staff to 
develop and deliver professional learning on explicit vocabulary instruction. Almost 100 practitioners from 73 schools 
attended the training. Fourteen schools have gone to participate in follow up work which involves action planning on how 
to embed and develop the strategies and resources shared with them. All these participants commented on the positive 
impact that the training had had on their teaching and learners’ understanding of how vocabulary is constructed.

2.1.1 Literacy and Numeracy

“Very informative and useful day! It 
was beneficial to hear the evidence 
of the impact of vocabulary. 
The practical lesson ideas were 
especially useful and I am looking 
forward to feeding back to the whole 
staff and implementing a whole 
school approach.” “I thought the course was excellent.”

 
“Genuinely enjoyed it all and found the 
resources fab!”
 
“It was highly engaging and useful - I 
wouldn’t change a thing.”

I thoroughly enjoyed learning 
specific etymology of certain words 
and found the variety of resources 
provided to share that knowledge 
with pupils very useful.

Next steps: 
Develop and share examples of skills practice worth sharing 
Continue to collaborate with LAs to ensure that there is equity of support 
in literacy and numeracy across the region. Tudalen 48



-15-

Priority 2: Improving Teaching 
and Learning

The Digital Competence framework is a key element of the cross-curricular skills as set out in the Curriculum for 
Wales framework. Partneriaeth’s professional learning offer for Digital Learning was developed to support leaders 
and practitioners to implement the Digital Competence Framework by providing a resilient strategy accompanied by 
exemplar material targeted at key decision makers. During the spring term three sessions were run across the region 

for Primary based colleagues, while a single session brought secondary 
colleagues together. Twenty-one primary colleagues attended from 
Pembrokeshire schools, 37 from Carmarthenshire and 47 from Swansea 
while 13 colleagues attended the secondary session. These sessions were 
co-constructed with relevant LAs colleagues and were well-received by 
delegates.

The sessions increased understanding of the mandatory elements of 
developing digital competence as a cross-curricular skill, as well as 
progression within the Digital Competence Framework. Attendees also 
developed an understanding of how to integrate digital competence skills 
in and across the curriculum at 
a local level.

An approach to developing a whole school strategy for implementing the 
DCF following a six-step strategy of gathering information, designing your 
strategy, getting started, reviewing, scaling-up and sustaining momentum 
was shared. Current and new tools for mapping the implementation of 
the Digital Competence Framework were also shared and well-received. 
However, it is too early to fully evaluate the impact in the classroom and this 
will be evaluated during the summer term through case studies.

Partneriaeth has also continued to support schools to ensure that online 
safety practices are as robust as possible. Three sessions were again co-constructed and delivered with LA colleagues 
being targeted at school-based colleagues with responsibility for leading on Online Safety and/or Safeguarding Officers. 
Over 100 schools attended the events that were run during the autumn term (Pembrokeshire 26, Carmarthenshire 40, 
Swansea 45). Colleagues from the Hwb Team in Welsh Government were also in attendance.

The sessions raised awareness of how to ensure a high level of digital 
resilience across all stakeholders. It gave attendees a greater understanding 
of the 360 Safe Cymru framework and how it can help ensure a school’s 
online safety practices are as robust as possible and made colleagues 
aware of the latest online safety learning and teaching resources available. 
Further support that is available via local authority and regional colleagues 
as well as relevant external professional bodies was also highlighted.
Partneriaeth has also developed a website to support the Cracking the 
Code agenda. A number of ‘How-to’ guides have been developed and case 
studies from schools are also shared on the site. Partneriaeth runs a loan 

scheme for coding kit which enables schools to assess coding devices on a trial basis before purchasing such devices. 
Fifty-four schools have accessed equipment through this scheme and will provide feedback regarding the use of these 
devices to deliver the computational thinking element of the Digital Competence Framework.

2.1.2 Digital

“The idea of creating help sheets 
aimed at the different progression 
steps for all areas of DCF is excellent 
and could be used in my school. 
Really useful getting current teachers 
to help create these, so could 
demonstrate how used in school 
before being adapted and rewritten 
by the DCF experts across LAs.”

“The opportunity to discuss 
progression with other teachers on 
different aspects of the framework 
was really helpful’
‘task cards were extremely useful, 
particularly the clear progression and 
suggestion box. These will be shared 
with colleagues”

“A really useful refresher of the 
Online Safety tool. So many 
resources on Hwb that I didn’t know 
about for us to use. A great chance 
to chat with other coordinators to 
see what others are doing.” 

Next steps: 
To work with LAs to identify and share good practice.
To liaise with LA colleagues and use feedback provided by schools to 
inform the purchase of future loan kit.
To liaise with the Hwb team to ensure that the latest developments in the 
Hwb platform are shared with schools. Tudalen 49



-16-

Priority 2: Improving Teaching 
and Learning

The development of the Integral Skills are key areas for skills development for many schools within the region. The 
integral skills of creativity and innovation underpin the four purposes and should, according to Curriculum for Wales 
Guidance, be developed within a wide range of learning and teaching. 

Senior, middle-leader and teacher dialogue with Partneriaeth officers and SIAs identified the need for focussed 
professional learning in this area. As at the heart of these two skills is the importance of learners recognising, using 
and creating different types of learning value. The professional learning workshop with Professor Christian Byrge took 
place in December 2022 with additional sessions planned in June 2023 as part of the 2023-24 Business Plan.

Thirty teachers from across Partneriaeth signed up for the sessions (6 Carms, 7 Pembs, 17 Swansea). However, 15 
practitioners eventually attended the session due to staff illness in schools. School Improvement Advisers were also 
able to attend. 

All attendees agreed or strongly agreed that the content of the PL opportunity 
was appropriate and improved their knowledge of creativity. With 100% of 
attendees stating that they would recommend the training to others. All felt 
confident that they would now be able to trial the strategies in the classroom, 
with many stating that they planned to share this PL with their colleagues 
in school.

As part of the Evaluation 1 form the opportunity to take part in a funded ‘Into the Classroom’ Working Group was offered 
to attendees. This group will allow collaboration to support the implementation of their learning into their classrooms/
schools. 

Six schools signed up for the ‘Into the Classroom’ 
Working Group with representation across all 3 LAs (1 in 
Carmarthenshire, 1 in Pembrokeshire and 4 in Swansea) 
The Working Group met in February 2022 and shared their 
initial actions and implementation in their classrooms/
schools following the PL opportunity. The group have 
planned how they wish to proceed with their development 
in Creativity and Innovation, and are working on creating 
and sharing a resource across the region of their work.

2.1.3 Integral Skills

Into the Classroom’ Working Group participants said 
that: 
 
“They used to only come up with a handful of 
suggestions to solve a problem. Now they know that 
I am going to want many more. They are starting to 
‘go beyond the obvious’ themselves now, and that has 
made our learning a lot more fun!’ 
 
‘I always used to go straight to collaborative thinking 
approaches with my pupils – pairs or groups normally. 
Now I give far more individual thinking time, before 
moving into collaborative thinking/discussion 
opportunities. This has resulted in far stronger initial 
thinking from most of my pupils.” 

“This is such a useful resource! It’s 
saved me so much time following on 
from the training. Thank you!” 

Next steps: 
Continuation of the ‘Into the 
Classroom’ approach

2.2 MODERN FOREIGN LANGUAGES                                                                                                             

Partneriaeth has continued to provide regional support for modern languages. However, the level of direct support 
from the region has been less targeted than in previous years due to staffing changes in May 2023. Termly meetings 
have been held for secondary heads of departments with a teacher from the region facilitating the meetings on behalf 
of Partneriaeth. These arrangements were formalised in spring 2023, with the appointment of a lead school to co-
ordinate the meetings on behalf of the region and attend national fora. For example, Global Futures steering group will 
be attended on behalf of Partneriaeth and key messages shared.

In Spring 2023 clusters were allocated grants to enable secondary schools to support primary schools within their 
Tudalen 50



-17-

Priority 2: Improving Teaching 
and Learning

clusters to build capacity to teach international languages in primary schools. Partneriaeth is also co-ordinating the 
trialling of a new set of resources to teach French in primary schools with 5 schools participating in the trial in the 
Summer 2023 term. The feedback from the schools will contribute to the development of the resources which are due 
to be available to schools in 2023/24 if the pilot programme is successful.

In summer 2023, Partneriaeth held a second conference for all schools within Partneriaeth exploring the theme of 
Bilingual to Multilingual: building inclusive classrooms. The programme for the conference included presentations 
from keynote speakers such as Mererid Hopwood, Deirdre Kirwan and Professor Linda Fisher and over 60 delegates 
attended the event. The conference also included presentations from the 8 schools that had been part of the pilot 
using the ‘Bilingual To Multilingual: A Toolkit for Developing Translanguaging and Plurilingual Skills to Build Inclusive 
Classrooms’ funded by Partneriaeth. In her presentation Prof Linda Fisher stated that the work that was being carried 
out in the region in this context was “ahead of the world” and the presentations from the schools showed the positive 
impact of this project in their schools.  The impact demonstrated ranged from a substantial increase in confidence as 
learners, with multiple languages being used regularly in classrooms and wider schools environment without the need 
for encouragement, to improved social cohesion, with multilingual learners feeling far more valued, and a decrease in 
bullying. As result of such positive feedback on the initial pilot, the pilot was further extended in September 2023 with 
6 of the original schools continuing to develop their work further and 2 new schools joining the pilot.  The project is now 
focussing on supporting schools to embed the use of translanguaging into day to day classroom practice, with schools 
so far reporting greater confidence and trialling innovative practice.

Next steps: 
To further formalise the regional support for MFL and agree on an operational plan for 2023-24.
To evaluate the plans / work at cluster level as result of the cluster funding for MFL.
To arrange a third conference in June / July 2023 and consider the next steps with the pilot and the 
toolkit.

2.3 CYMRAEG

The development of Welsh in Education is key to meet the objectives of Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050 
strategy. Partneriaeth officers are key contributors to the national and cross-regional work and contribute to 
the work of developing, reviewing and implementing national plans. A cross-regional plan has been agreed 
and supported by WG, and Partneriaeth has been identified as the lead region for Welsh first language.                                                                                                         

Partnership working with LA leads is strong and this effectively supports the strategic planning and delivery. This 
enables officers to discuss and plan a joint PL offer and utilise funding appropriately and meet the needs of schools. 
Grants have been distributed to all three LAs to support their priorities in addressing their Welsh in Education Strategic 
Plans.  All LAs also received grants to support and facilitate the delivery of the Siarter Iaith. 

2.3.1 Partnership working

At regional level, Partneriaeth officers have provided bespoke support to Welsh first language and second language 
departments to address identified needs, and termly network meetings for both first and second language Welsh have 
been held to offer training and support in areas such as progression, assessment and pedagogy. Nearly all schools 
attended each of the termly meetings and the feedback from attendees was overwhelmingly positive with consistent 
commentary that the sessions were meeting the needs of their schools.  

2.3.2 Bespoke support

Tudalen 51



-18-

Priority 2: Improving Teaching 
and Learning

Training was delivered across the region on the ‘Tric a Chlic’ synthetic phonic programme with sessions held for teachers 
and TAs in Welsh medium and English medium primary school. 162 of teachers and TAs attended the training and the 
effect of the training upon delivery of the programme in schools will be reviewed in 2023/24.  Training also delivered 
on the ‘Ffa-la-la!’ programme – a unique methodology that focuses on improving Welsh speaking ability and confidence 
in primary schools through music and creativity. Twenty six teachers from across 20 schools were part of the pilot. As a 
result of receiving extremely positive feedback from the attendees following the training the intention is to roll out the 
training across the region in 23/24. The feedback has been extremely positive with attendees.

2.3.3 Training

A range of high-quality resources were developed and shared with both primary and secondary schools. These include 
a range of resources to support the teaching of Welsh at GCSE level (First Language and Second Language) e.g. new 
and original short videos to develop recount, inference, comparison skills and language analysis. In addition, new 
resources such as Rhwng y Llinellau: Hybu sgiliau darllen (promoting reading skills) have been published and shared 
with all schools.  

In December 2022 Hanes yr Iaith videos and supplementary educational resources were launched, and the response has 
been positive with the resources used within and beyond the region. Stori Sir Gar resources were developed in Autumn 
2023 by a team of officers, authors, and teachers from the region to introduce and deepen the knowledge of learners 
aged 8–12 about some of the legends and histories of the area, and to strengthen learners’ language proficiency. The 
teachers that were involved in the development of the resources valued the professional development opportunity, and 
the opportunity to collaborate with colleagues from other schools. The resources offer a range of activities from various 
Areas of Learning and Experience. Similar resources for Pembrokeshire and Swansea are currently in development and 
will be published in 2023/24. 

2.3.4 Resources

Feedback after the Tric a Chlic training for English medium primary schools:
“Will support the teaching of Welsh reading, speaking and listening which will lead to increased standards”
“This will support our learners in developing their Welsh phonic skills to improve their reading and raise standards 
in Welsh.”
“It will allow Welsh phonics and early writing skills to be taught effectively in my setting.”
“Phonics and reading can now be taught in Welsh to further promote and encourage the use of Cymraeg in the 
classroom”

Tric a Chlic for Welsh medium primary schools:
“Fantastic course that is extremely useful for what I need in school”.
“Far more confident to present Tric a Chlic sessions in the classroom”
“I’m going to (be able to) show other members of staff how to use Tric a Chlic to support and improve reading 
standards in the school”.

Sharing good practice is a key part of the work in the context of Welsh in education, and case studies are continuously 
being captured and shared both at meetings and training sessions as well as by digital platforms. A video showcasing 
Partneriaeth’s LLC pilot project Deall y Daith Ddysgu was shared in a national event recently and was highly praised 
accross the regions. Deall y Daith Ddysgu was a project where Partneriaeth officers worked closely with two all age 
schools from Pembrokeshire LA and their feeder primary clusters to ensure a shared understanding of progression 
within listening. They shared resources and pedagogical strategies in order to ensure progression along the language 
continuum as part of the project. A video is also being created in collaboration with primary and secondary schools to 
demonstrate best practice in using Pie Corbett resources in Welsh language lessons.   

2.3.5 Case Studies

Tudalen 52



-19-

Priority 2: Improving Teaching 
and Learning

The Clwb Ysgol social media platform and promotional campaign was rebranded and relaunched in 2023 with digital 
content shared weekly on social media to promote Welsh education and bilingualism as a skill. Clwb Ysgol has also been 
used to promote resources created by Partneriaeth.  Short videos were created and shared with the aim of promoting 
Welsh medium education to parents. These videos have already reached over 150,000 people. 

Siarter Iaith resources were also created by Partneriaeth and shared on the Clwb Ysgol site. Short videos were created 
to present the Siarter Iaith to school leaders, governors and parents with ideas on how to deliver the aims of the Siarter 
within the school. Due to the popularity of the videos a result a request came by WG and the other regions to adopt 
these resources as national resources. These videos are now being used by WG on the official Siarter Iaith site on Hwb. 

A Strategic Adviser for Welsh in Education was appointed in December 2022 and started in post in March 2023. 
Partneriaeth have also appointed an Adviser to support secondary second language Welsh to start in September 2023. 
Both posts had previously been vacant since March/April 2023 and some of the work in this area was hindered as a 
result of capacity issues. The new appointments will enable Partneriaeth to ensure that provide a far wider programme 
of support to schools in the future. 

2.3.6 Staffing

Next steps: 
To develop a regional strategy for Welsh in Education, in collaboration with LA officers. 
Extend and deepen the support for the teaching of Welsh, and supporting Welsh education 
across the region. 

2.4 POST-16 IMPROVEMENT

The development of Welsh in Education is key to meet the objectives of Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050 
strategy. Partneriaeth officers are key contributors to the national and cross-regional work and contribute to 
the work of developing, reviewing and implementing national plans. A cross-regional plan has been agreed 
and supported by WG, and Partneriaeth has been identified as the lead region for Welsh first language.                                                                                                         

The cross-regional leadership development programme for post-16 is established and was endorsed in November 2022 
by NAEL.  Results Driven Group have been running an ILM level 5 qualification for since Autumn 2022. 15 delegates 
from Partneriaeth schools registered for the programme. The content of the sessions was adjusted throughout the 
programme in response to feedback. 

As a result of the training delegates reported that they were more able to be strategic in their roles.  Examples of how 
they put their learning into practice included meeting with the senior leadership team to develop planned strategies, 
utilising taught coaching techniques and VESPA questions to support learner wellbeing, creating a vision for their Sixth 
Form and adopting new pastoral systems to support learner progression and attainment. 

Following the completion of the leadership programme, 13 delegates took up the offer of 1:1 coaching sessions which 
supported and facilitated implementation of planned initiatives from their learning on the programme. However, to 
successfully embed learning from the programme, delegates highlighted the main barriers as being time to embed, 
followed by senior leadership support and availability of resources. 

2.4.1 Cross-regional

Tudalen 53



-20-

Priority 2: Improving Teaching 
and Learning

A post-16 module for NQTs is currently being developed with the cross-regional team with a draft outline agreed. The 
module is scheduled to be ready for delivery asynchronously in the summer term 2023. 

2.4.2 NQT Post-16 Module Development and Delivery

Next steps: 
Development of a cross-regional post-16 professional learning programme for the next 
academic year.  

VESPA professional learning sessions were planned for the spring and summer terms 2023. The first session was 
attended by delegates from 14 schools with sixth forms from Partneriaeth. Initial feedback of this support has been 
extremely supportive however, a full evaluation will be carried out following the second part which will be delivered in 
June 2023. To ensure equity for all schools, all resources are shared and can be accessed via the Post-16 Teams page. 
It is intended that VESPA case-studies will be developed over time.  
 
Bespoke training has been agreed with schools in Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire.  
  
A Level Conference 
The A level conferences for English and Welsh are well-established and have been very well-received across the 
partnership.  

2.4.3 VESPA / A Level Mindset

Tudalen 54



-21-

Priority 3: Leadership and 
Career Development 

1. TEACHING ASSISTANT LEARNING PATHWAY (TALP)
2. INDUCTION FOR NEWLY QUALIFIED TEACHERS (NQTS) / EARLY CAREER SUPPORT
3. FUTURE LEADERSHIP PROGRAMME

3.1  TEACHING ASSISTANT LEARNING PATHWAY(TALP)

The Teaching Assistant Learning Pathway (TALP) is a national programme of professional learning that has been developed 
for Teaching Assistants across Wales which is being offered by all Regional Consortia. The pathway has been developed 
to support Teaching Assistants identify and access a development programme appropriate to their current need.

Partneriaeth supports all professionals to progress along their own career pathway and supports them to 
develop leadership skills across the pathway.

The Induction Programme for Newly Appointed Teaching 
Assistants is in the form of a playlist accessed on demand 
via Hwb. There are 4 sessions, each session introduced by 
a regional coordinator. 

3.1.1 Teaching Assistants - Induction Programme 

This programme is for those with more than two years’ 
experience, and who would welcome an update on the 
changes to the context of the profession. Attendees are 
provided with information relating to the professional 
standards, current relevant strategies to support their 
practice, Curriculum for Wales and a range of ideas and 
strategies to inspire professionalism back in school.

3.1.2 Practising Teaching Assistant Programme

Induction Programme
September 2022 to March 2023

Practising TA Programme
January to March 2023

“I felt the way you could complete the modules in 
sections in your own time was positive.”

“Listening to Rita Pierson and then the following slide 
on ‘Roles and Responsibilities’ made me realize how 
important we are to the education of our learners and 
their well-being.”

“It was great to learn about a possible learning 
pathway for Teaching assistants.”

“Thank you very much to all the facilitators and 
participants of this programme. I found it very 
beneficial and interesting to speak to colleagues in 
different education settings / local authorities.”

“The course is definitely an eye opener for me. It made 
everything that we do make sense.”

Tudalen 55



-22-

Priority 3: Leadership and 
Career Development 

This programme supports the TA to gather a series of learning reflections matched to the Professional Standards for 
Assisting Teaching. Upon successful completion of this programme Teaching Assistants are in a very strong position 
to identify their readiness for HLTA assessment.

3.1.3 Aspiring Higher Level Teaching Assistant Programme (HLTA)

This assessment is by application following completion 
of the New Aspiring HLTA programme and confirmation 
of a minimum Level 2 Essential Skills qualification (or 
equivalent) in Literacy and Numeracy. Applicants must 
also have experience in leading the learning for whole 
classes and have their Head teacher’s endorsement for 
application.

3.1.4 HLTA Assessment

Cylch 4
Aspiring HLTA Development Programme

Cylch 5
Aspiring HLTA Development Programme

Cylch 4
HLTA Assessment

“Having the modules recorded has been a great tool to refer back to if needed”

“Thank you so much for the course, breakout rooms have been good, sharing ideas, hearing how other schools 
are doing things - difference between our primary school with 42 children and a secondary with over 1000 
children!”

“Personally, it has helped me gain more knowledge and better understand how I can implement the pedagogy 
and professional standards within my role. Networking on the programme has supported me with my role with my 
learners by allowing me to adapt others’ ideas and strategies.”

“It has given me the opportunity to develop 
professionally. During the programme I listened to a 
podcast for the first time, after writing a Professional 
Learning Reflection on this it has been discussed that 
as a school, we will use Podcasts in future learning.”

Tudalen 56



-23-

Priority 3: Leadership and 
Career Development 

3.2 INDUCTION / EARLY CAREER SUPPORT PACKAGE   

Partneriaeth Professional Learning opportunities for Newly Qualified Teachers (NQTs) have been developed in order 
to allow for equity of access to Professional Learning for all, whether practitioners are full-time, part-time or supply. 

We ensure that Professional Learning is of the highest quality provision and support with easy access to this 
support across the consortia. Professional Learning encourages engagement in enquiry and is supported by 
Induction Mentors (IM), External Mentors (EM) and External Verifiers (EV). Professional Learning offers are 
also made available to mentors so that they are able to support the NQTs in a professional and informed way. 

This provides opportunities and training to become a member of the Partneriaeth TALP Team. Members of the team 
support the coordinator in promoting, facilitating and preparing resources for various programmes. Training is provided 
to become a HLTA Assessor and Coaching and Mentoring training opportunities are provided.

3.1.5 Specialised Teaching Assistants National HLTA Assessor Training

Number of NQTs (Data collated on 13th March 2023)

Partneriaeth – 220 in schools 82 short term supply = 302
Pembrokeshire – 43 in schools 15 short term supply = 58
Carmarthenshire – 74 in schools 26 short term supply = 100
Swansea – 103 in schools 41 short term supply = 144

Partneriaeth currently support 302 NQTs at various 
stages of their induction, 58 in Pembrokeshire, 100 in 
Carmarthenshire and 144 in Swansea. This includes 
220 contracted NQTs and 82 short-term supply NQTs.

Three hundred and sixty-three Induction Mentors, 
working in Partneriaeth schools, are currently supported. 
Forty-five External Verifiers are also supported 
within Partneriaeth Clusters, some have dual roles 
working with more than one cluster to support the 
Induction Mentors in their role. Some of the External 

In school

Short-term supply

Number of NQTs
(Data collected on 13th March 2023)

“I believe that gaining the HLTA status has increased Y’s confidence and self-esteem. In her current role she is very 
adaptable, and her role often changes from day to day depending on pupil and staff absence. I think that gaining 
HLTA status has had a positive impact on the school and pupils. She has gained enhanced knowledge, expertise 
and skills in supporting learning in a range of different situations, including teaching whole classes without 
a qualified teacher being present. She is also able to direct the work of other adults supporting teaching and 
learning. ‘She can cross over between being a TA to a class teacher when needed.   Well done ‘Y’!”

Headteacher reflection

Verifiers also work with short term supply NQTs as their External Mentor. These forty-five External verifiers 
are spread across the region, as follows, 9 in Pembrokeshire, 16 in Carmarthenshire and 20 in Swansea.

Tudalen 57



-24-

Priority 3: Leadership and 
Career Development 

The National Induction Group delivered sessions on the following during the Autumn term:

1.	 National Briefing
2.	 Writing PLEs
3.	 Wellbeing (Overview)
4.	 Wellbeing in practice/Learning environment
5.	 Curriculum for Wales
6.	 Enquiry

Sessions delivered by Partneriaeth colleagues during the Spring term consisted of a large variety of topics, including 
the following:

•	 Primary and Secondary Literacy
•	 Primary and Secondary Numeracy
•	 Primary and Secondary Cymraeg
•	 Post 16 education
•	 ALN
•	 DCF and Online Safety
•	 Equity in the classroom
•	 Poverty Proofing
•	 Anti racism

The professional learning improved my knowledge of the subject 	 – 90.7% strongly agree/agree 
The content was appropriate to my needs and my skill level 		  – 90.1% strongly agree/agree 
The professional learning provided content relevant to my role 		  – 90.5% strongly agree/agree

3.3 FUTURE LEADERSHIP PROGRAMME

The Middle Leaders Professional Learning Programme is a National Programme which has been created by all consortia 
working in collaboration. The programme has been endorsed by the National Academy for Educational Leadership in 
Wales. The programme is delivered and coordinated regionally to ensure that regional, as well as national priorities, 
are addressed within the programme. By delivering the programme regionally, the potential for ensuring that teachers 
from a wide range of school contexts participate in the programme.

This national programme is available to all middle leaders across Wales who have areas of responsibility and/or line 
management of staff. The programme is delivered by regional consortia and partnerships and promotes highly effective 
leadership through self-evaluation and reflection, exploring the relationships between leadership, successful schools 
and the wider community.

Each participant works through a Leadership Experience Task. They are supported in the completion of this task by a 
coach or mentor from their own school. The Leadership Experience Task provides the evidence of the impact of the 
developing leadership of the participants and of the developing practice in their schools and the impact this has on 
the school community. 

3.3.1 National Middle Leader Development Programme

“Face to face meetings have been highly beneficial, especially the Numeracy and Literacy training. The practical 
resources that were shown and the strategies that could be used were very good – I have used them in my class 
already.”

“I have shared the information from the training with other members of my department as I thought they were 
such good ideas.”

Tudalen 58



-25-

Priority 3: Leadership and 
Career Development 

Aspects of school improvement chosen for the Leadership 
Experience tasks include: 

•	 Assessment and progression across the school
•	 Assessment for learning strategies across the school
•	 School self-evaluation
•	 Developing oracy skills across the school
•	 Implementing aspects of the new ALN bill
•	 Numeracy across the school
•	 To improve the quality of writing across the school
•	 Reading for pleasure
•	 Total communication
•	 Revision strategies, recall and retention
•	 Increase the use of Welsh
•	 NQT training and development
•	 Development of pupil voice
•	 Health and well being

This one-year programme is a national programme for 
leaders who have overall responsibility for an aspect 
of leadership across an establishment. This includes 
senior curriculum/pastoral leaders and members of a 
senior leadership team, such as assistant or deputy 
headteachers. The programme is delivered by regional 
consortia and consists of five modules that allows the 
participant to reflect on their individual effectiveness as 
a leader. 

The participant will work individually and collectively 
with others as leaders of learning organisations. This is a 
national programme co-ordinated by regional consortia, 
utilising a range of delivery partners, in collaboration 
with Local Authorities.

3.3.2 National Senior Leader Development Programme 

COHORT Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea Total
2022 English 15 9 21 45

2022 Cymraeg 0 20 0 20

2022-2023 English 2 0 11 13

2023 Cymraeg collabora-
tion pilot (Bryntawe, Gwyr, 
Bro Dur)

- - 14 14

2023 Cymraeg 1 10 3 14

2023 English 14 6 16 36

TOTAL 32 45 65 142

MLDP 2022/23

Senior Leadership Development Programme
2022/23 Tudalen 59



-26-

Priority 3: Leadership and 
Career Development 

This programme is for aspiring headteachers in preparation for undertaking the assessment required for the National 
Professional Qualification for Headship (NPQH). It is a five-module programme that will be delivered over three terms 
spanning two academic years, commencing at the start of the spring term and being completed by the end of the 
Autumn Term. Completion of this programme is an expectation for all future NPQH applicants.

Cohort 2, which ran from January 2022 until October 2022, consisted of 33 participants, 30 of whom progressed to 
formal NPQH assessment in February 2023 (see next section for details). 

The application and endorsement process for cohort 3 of this programme was completed at the end of November 
2022. The programme for this new cohort commenced in January 2023. There are 34 participants from Partneriaeth 
schools in this new cohort; 11 from Pembrokeshire, 14 from Carmarthenshire and 9 from Swansea.

3.3.3 Aspiring Headteacher Development Programme (preparation for NPQH) 

COHORT Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea Total
Cohort 2 Cymraeg 2022 3 6 0 9

Cohort 2 English 2022 3 10 13 26

Cohort 3 Cymraeg 2023 0 12 3 15

Cohort 3 English 2022 7 5 9 21

Cohort 4 English 2023 9 8 26 43

TOTAL 22 41 51 142

The NPQH Assessment Centre ran over two weeks in February 2023. Thirty-five candidates were assessed, which 
included 5 who were being re-assessed from the previous year. A total of 26 candidates successfully met the required 
standard and were awarded NPQH status.

3.3.4 National Professional Qualification for Headteachers (NPQH) Assessment Centre

Candidates assessed in 
February 2023 Met Not yet 

met

Pembrokeshire 5 4

Carmarthenshire 4 3

Swansea 17 2

Total 26 9

Total number of candidates assessed 
in February 2023

Met

Not yet met

Tudalen 60



-27-

Priority 3: Leadership and 
Career Development 

This programme has been designed to support New Headteachers to obtain the information they need to work 
effectively on a National and local basis along with providing individual development focusing on the knowledge 
and skills required to become a successful Headteacher. It is designed to ensure that, wherever you are as a new 
Headteacher in Wales, you have access to the same high quality professional learning as your colleagues. A total of 22 
delegates are undertaking this programme across the LAs.

3.3.5 National New and Acting Headteacher Development Programme

This programme is for experienced headteachers who wish to further develop their existing practice. It provides a 
professional learning opportunity for experienced headteachers to reflect on their current performance and determine 
their next steps in ensuring effective leadership.

Participants will reflect on a range of leadership styles, including their own, and how their leadership impacts on 
others. They will develop an understanding of the theory of change and how this effects their leadership on the 
transformational reform journey. They will have opportunities to collaborate with others to lead their schools effectively 
and to impact positively on leadership across Wales and, in doing so, will embed a culture and practice of appropriate 
innovation across and beyond their school.

This programme has now restarted, having been paused during the pandemic. Seven headteachers from across 
Partneriaeth applied to go on the programme and all seven have been accepted. This group is made up of 5 headteachers 
from Swansea and 2 from Carmarthenshire. No applications were received from Pembrokeshire.

3.3.6 Experienced Headteacher Programme

Tudalen 61



-28-

Priority 4: Strong Inclusive 
Schools

1.	 MITIGATING THE IMPACT OF POVERTY AND DISADVANTAGE 
2.	 DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION 
3.	 TRAUMA INFORMED APPROACHES 

4.1  TEACHING ASSISTANT LEARNING PATHWAY(TALP)

The Teaching Assistant Learning Pathway (TALP) is a national programme of professional learning that has been developed 
for Teaching Assistants across Wales which is being offered by all Regional Consortia. The pathway has been developed 
to support Teaching Assistants identify and access a development programme appropriate to their current need.

Partneriaeth supports schools and settings to embed principles and processes which underpin educational 
equity. Our aim is that personal or social circumstances are not obstacles to achieving educational potential 
and that all schools and settings have high aspirations for all learners.

Partneriaeth have collaborated with Children North East and in 
September 2022 launched a 3 year regional programme.  The 
programme supports schools to identify and address often unseen 
inequalities within their school’s community. As a result they can 
embed systems and processes which help to reduce stigma and 
contribute to breaking the link between educational attainment and 
financial background. 

Thirty schools have signed up for the programme and all attendees agreed or strongly agreed that the training would 
have a positive impact on their practice in both the short, medium and long term. Three schools have completed a whole 
school audit process with Children North East and are currently working to implement the recommendations made in 
the detailed feedback report generated by the survey. In March 2023 Partneriaeth ran the first cluster wide training 
session where every member of staff from a Swansea cluster had training on poverty proofing with a plan for the whole 
cluster to be ‘Poverty Proof’ by October 2023.  

As a result of the training, participating schools have shared some of the changes that they have already made 
which include: removing/reducing the cost of leavers hoodies and events for families, discussions with PTA bodies, 
opportunities to fundraise with external organisations and reconsideration of trips and residentials. 

4.1.1 Poverty Proofing

4.1.2 Raising the Attainment of Disadvantaged Youngsters (RADY)

Estyn quote from a recent inspection:
“Leaders are fully aware of the impact of 
poverty on pupil progress (and ensure) 
that all pupils can take part in all learning 
experiences.”

Next steps: 
Generate a ‘common theme’ report which will be used strategically to inform the next 
phase of the project.  

Partneriaeth continue to work with Challenging Education to deliver the RADY (Raising Attainment of Disadvantaged 
Youngsters) programme.  Partneriaeth is funding 50 schools to be part of the RADY programme. There is a separate 
/ additional programme of activity taking place in Pembrokeshire, where the LA have developed in house provision to 
support every school to develop their understanding and embedding of the RADY principles and the golden thread within 
their own settings. This  whole school change initiative consists of a range of strategies that focus on disadvantage 
and disadvantaged pupils in schools and is underpinned by what Challenging Education term the ‘uplift’. ‘Uplift’ is a 
mechanism for raising the targets, and subsequently the aspirations, set for pupils from disadvantaged backgrounds.  

Tudalen 62



Priority 4: Strong Inclusive 
Schools

Two engagement events have been held virtually in the last 12 
months to provide schools with an opportunity to speak to the team 
at Challenging Education directly and hear from schools already 
engaged with the RADY programme. As a result of the continued 
interest in the programme Partneriaeth have developed a two year 
plan with Challenging Education who will continue to provide one to 
one specialist support to up to an additional 100 schools and settings 
to develop and embed the RADY principles.  

As a result of the work with Challenging Education two schools 
from Partneriaeth were invited to present on their RADY journey at 
the ‘Achieve Equity Conference’ in December 2022 at Birmingham 
University. about their RADY journey and the positive impact the 

programme is having within the schools. In addition Estyn recently highlighted the impact that the RADY approach 
was having in one primary school. However, whilst feedback continues to be positive from participating schools a full 
evaluation of the impact of the activity has not yet been carried out and Partneriaeth will identify and commission an 
HEI to conduct a full evaluation. 

4.2 DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

4.2.1 Think Equal

Estyn quote from a recent Partneriaeth 
school inspection:
“Leaders have introduced a range of 
effective approaches that encourage 
staff to consider effects of deprivation on 
learners’ outcomes. For example, the audit 
and strategic plan allows staff to track the 
progress of targeted pupils, implement 
appropriate interventions and evaluate the 
progress made against pupil outcomes.”

Next steps: 
Provide termly opportunities for new schools to become part of the regional RADY network.  

Partneriaeth is developing professional learning opportunities that will support leaders and practitioners to incorporate 
opportunities for their learners to celebrate diversity and challenge stereotypes.  

In October 2022 Partneriaeth launched the Think Equal programme which is a fully resourced 30 week social and 
emotional literacy programme for 3-6 year olds.  Sixty-eight schools are part of the evidence-based 
programme which works to challenge and end discriminatory mindsets. Partneriaeth funded the 
translation of all the resources to make this a fully bilingual offer. 

All participants completed the Think Equal virtual training programme in November 
2022 and all agreed or strongly agreed that the learning would have a positive 
impact on their practice immediately and over the next year. Virtual focus 
groups were held in March 2023 to coincide with the midpoint of the 
programme cycle. All participants were able to identify improvements in 
social and emotional learning as well as literacy skills. A majority of the 
participating schools have expressed an interest in implementing 
additional Think Equal programmes with other year groups. 

Next steps: 
6 schools to conduct an in-
depth review / evaluation of the 
programme to share impact and 
inform next phase of delivery 
and share.

Tudalen 63



-30-

Priority 4: Strong Inclusive 
Schools

4.3  TRAUMA INFORMED APPROACHES

An understanding and appreciation of adverse childhood experiences and trauma, and its impact on the learner is key 
to developing a whole school approach to social and emotional wellbeing and readiness to learn. 

In 2022-23 Partneriaeth continued to run termly opportunities for school practitioners to attend a whole days training 
with Trauma Informed Schools (TISUK), and to also access subsequent and additional deeper training around Emotion 
Coaching, Sensory Regulation, Relationship Based Play and Attachment, so that practitioner knowledge could be 
developed and practical strategies put in place for individual learners. 

In 2022-23 - 104 individual school and local authority based practitioners from 55 schools completed the Trauma 
Informed Schools training and from those who completed the initial evaluation following the training, 100% agreed 
that the training improved their knowledge of the subject and would have a positive impact on their practice moving 
forward. When surveyed again three months later, all respondents agreed that the training had had a positive impact 
on their practice.  

As a result of the training attendees have been able to  provide real life examples of how the specialist knowledge and 
strategies had been used in the classroom – developments such as making a concerted effort to learn more about 
their learners and their family situations, changing their approach with learners who are presenting with challenging 
behaviour and actively seeking out further PL opportunities to strengthen their own understanding.   

In March 2023 Partneriaeth ran the first cluster wide training session where every member of staff from a Swansea 
cluster (over 180) had training on Adverse Childhood Experiences and Trauma and feedback has been very positive. It 
is hoped that this can be rolled out across every cluster by March 2025.

Partneriaeth has run the history literature project for a second year to support national priorities to develop representation 
in literature and the curriculum of Black, Asian and minority ethnic authors and histories. In 2021-2022 Partneriaeth ran 
a pilot project for secondary schools based on the ‘Just Reading’ approach and research by University of Sussex and 
aims to improve literacy skills, confidence in reading and fluency in discussing historic periods and events.  In 2022-23 
partnership working has continued with Diversity Anti-racism Professional learning (DARPL) and Literature Wales to 
extend the project to include primary aged pupils. Sixteen schools and settings from across all phases are participating 
in the current phase . Participating schools have been funded to write a case study following the completion of the book 
to identify examples of how reading has supported individual and groups of learners in their literacy. 

4.2.2 History Literature Project

Next steps: 
Co-construct phase 3 with current participants 

Tudalen 64



-31-

Priority 5: Self Improving 
Systems

1.	 SCHOOLS AS LEARNING ORGANISATIONS (SLO) 
2.	 NATIONAL PROFESSIONAL ENQUIRY PROJECT (NPEP) 

5.1  SCHOOLS AS LEARNING ORGANISATIONS (SLO)

The SLO approach was introduced in 2017 to support schools to prepare for the new curriculum in 2022 and 
continues to be a Welsh Government priority as we move into the next phase of Curriculum for Wales roll out.

A research paper* published in summer 2022 concluded that the positive impact of the SLO model was hindered 
by a lack of any clear guidance on the practical processes that underpin success. In response to this  Partneriaeth 
established an SLO working group made up of head teachers and senior leaders from 13 schools across the region.  

The SLO Working Group is a five part programme that focusses on how leaders can use the SLO model as the basis for 
continuous development; specifically highlighting key strengths, areas for development and effective ways of working 
to enable all staff to develop professionally.  

The working group has been tasked with sharing their SLO ‘journeys’ through the following 5 stages: initial findings; 
evidence base; identified interventions; intended impact of chosen intervention; review. The schools’ processes will 
be shared on a Partneriaeth SLO website which seeks to offer practical support, resources and examples of how to 
develop each of the seven dimensions of the SLO model. This practical resource is intended to be a catalyst for positive 
engagement with the SLO model as a contributory factor and key attribute of schools’ realisation of Curriculum for 
Wales as outlined in the School Improvement Guidance. In addition, the resource will support engagement with the 
National Resource for Evaluation and Improvement and The Professional Standards. 

* Alma Harris, Zoe Elder, Michelle Suzette Jones and Angella Cooze, ‘Schools as Learning Organisations in Wales: 
Exploring the Evidence’, Wales Journal of Education, 24/1, DOI: 10.16922/wje.24.1.3  Summer 2022.

Partneriaeth’s aim is to support a system in which the education professionals have the skills, capacity and 
agency to continually learn & improve their practice, whilst providing professional learning for developing 
practice and reflection. 

Next steps: 
Complete co-construction of the website ready to launch by 
September 2023.

5.2 NATIONAL PROFESSIONAL ENQUIRY PROJECT (NPEP)  
Fifty-nine schools across Partneriaeth (15 Carmarthenshire, 16 Pembrokeshire and 28 Swansea) have 
undertaken research and enquiry through NPEP. A launch event in October 2022 established expectations and ensured 
focussed sharing of research already embedded in schools. This process is well-supported by HEI colleagues at UWTSD 
and Swansea University. The post-16 NPEP is now incorporated into the regional NPEP work and this has improved 
coherence for schools across the region having previously been established as part of a separate project.  

Funding is allocated by Welsh Government for three levels of schools: Established/Developing/Emerging. 

Established schools have been involved in research and enquiry for many years and have regularly shared at a regional 
and national level. Eighteen schools in Partneriaeth (3 Carmarthenshire, 3 Pembrokeshire and 11 Swansea) are 
established NPEP schools and they have previously had their research projects published on Hwb. These schools lead 
enquiry cluster groups and share their expertise with regards to research and enquiry supporting schools in carrying 
out their enquiries and completing reports. 
 
Developing schools have some experience of research and enquiry although this may be limited to one or two people 
or departments. They have developed their schools as an enquiry organisation by scaling across departments and, in Tudalen 65



-32-

Priority 5: Self Improving 
Systems

a few cases at a whole school level. Twenty-five schools across the region (9 Carmarthenshire, 9 Pembrokeshire and 9 
Swansea).  
  
Emerging schools have limited or no experience of research and enquiry. These schools are supported by the Established 
schools as well as the HEIs. 
(3 Carmarthenshire, 2 Pembrokeshire and 11 Swansea)  
  
Cluster communication continues to develop to ensure that the focus of research within a cluster is shared beyond 
the schools undertaking NPEP. Clear roles and expectations have been established with research schools and the 
Partneriaeth support plan with HEIs has been completed during the autumn term. This has enabled a more effective 
approach to research and enquiry.  
 
In addition to the support provided by Established schools, HEIs have offered a range of online sessions such as ‘Data 
collection and analysis’, ‘Research methods and ethics’, ‘Writing the section 2 reports’ as well as several ‘Coffee and 
Enquiry’ sessions whereby schools can drop in to ask questions and gain support from HEI colleagues. 
 
Most schools (51) involved have now submitted their Section 1 forms and aRe due to complete the section 2 report by 
April 28th 2023, with the final report deadline being 3rd July 2023. However, a handful of schools have been unable to 
complete the section 1 report by the deadline due to range of different reasons including staff absence and workload 
pressures.

Next steps: 
Ensure that the number of emerging schools are increased during 2023-24.
Ensure effective sharing of NPEP work across Partneriaeth.

Tudalen 66



-33-

Priority 6: Ensure that Partneriaeth has strong 
governance and effective business and operational 
support that provides value for money 

The high-level Business Plan for 2022-23 was co-constructed with Senior LA colleagues with LA priorities being 
noted at the start of the plan and referenced throughout. The Business Plan was presented to, and accepted by, Joint 
Committee. Detailed operational plans have been written for every area of the Business Plan, noting the officer with 
overall responsibility, timeline for delivery and budget. However, further collaboration and co-construction will be 
enabled for the 2023-24 offer. 
  
Financial planning has been reviewed regularly, to ensure tracking of budgets and delivery. However, there have been 
a range of challenges in terms of financial support available and this has impacted on some of the expected timelines 
for delegation of a few grant lines. 
 
 Salaries and costs, including Service Level Agreements (SLAs) and office leasing have been calculated and budgets 
have been allocated for every line of the Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant (RCSIG) and Pupil Development 
Grant (PDG). RCSIG variation letters were received in September and December 2022 and the 4 new funding lines 
detailed in those letters have been included in our financial planning. Quarterly monitoring of the Business Plan is 
completed with successes, challenges and next steps identified for all lines, with each being RAYG rated. 
  
Partneriaeth’s Professional Learning Offer was developed and shared with all stakeholders via the website, engagement 
with Headteachers and newsletters to schools. An agreed method of evaluation of work, driven by the review and 
improvement of provision and reporting requirements, has been shared with all Partneriaeth colleagues. This work will 
be developed further during 2023-24 to ensure alignment with LA processes of evaluation and national discussions. 
  
Partneriaeth’s three Senior Strategic Advisers have engaged with relevant LA groups and meetings, such as Headteacher 
meetings, School Improvement Adviser meetings and other strategic groups, as required. They also have regular 
meetings with relevant senior colleagues from each LA, both as a collective and individually. This engagement has been 
positively received and will be developed further during 2023-24 as we agree BP priorities and strategic directions to 
meet the needs of the schools across the region. 
 
The Risk Register has been developed and reviewed throughout 2022-23. Having firstly been shared with LA Directors, 
it has been presented to Joint Committee and accepted. A further amendment was made after a request from Joint 
Committee to strengthen the comments linked to support for Curriculum for Wales. 

Next steps: 
Review Risk Register 
Review Website/Support Log 
Ensure regular meetings between finance colleagues and Partneriaeth Finance Lead

Tudalen 67



-34-

Cross-Regional Working

Partneriaeth officers support the national professional learning agenda through participating in the full 
range of cross-regional groups and shaping the national offer. 

Regional teams work together to share practice and 
resources, develop and deliver national professional 
learning programmes, as well as providing other 
sources of support. This partnership ensures that staff 
across Wales have access to professional learning 
regardless of where they work or live.  
 
For example, to support all schools and settings 
across Wales in realising the Curriculum for Wales, a 
comprehensive professional learning programme has 
been developed by the cross regional Professional 
Learning team. This evidence-based offer integrates 
all elements of the wider reform and supports all 
practitioners with sessions for leaders, teachers, 
teaching assistants and governors.   

The sessions include a blend of theory and 
practical examples from schools and settings 
from around Wales. Furthermore, many sessions 
throughout the Spring term 2023 will offer 
schools an opportunity for discussions with 
fellow school colleagues from across Wales.   

Next steps: 
Review of all cross-regional groups 
Consider additional groups for 2023-24 
e.g. Digital 

CURRICULUM
FOR

WALES
CYMRAEG

EQUITY IN
EDUCATION

COACHING 
AND

MENTORING

POST-16
EDUCATIONMORE

ABLE AND
TALENTED

WELLBEING
PARTNERSHIP
PROGRAMME

LEADERSHIP
DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMMES

PROFESSIONAL
LEARNING

CROSS-
REGIONAL 
WORKING

Tudalen 68



                                                                

 
CYD-BWYLLGOR PARTNERIAETH 

23 MEHEFIN 2023 
 

CYNLLUN STRATEGOL/CYNLLUN BUSNES PARTNERIAETH 
2023-24 

 
DIBEN:  
 
Darparu Cynllun Strategol a Chynllun Busnes ar gyfer 2023-24 i Gyd-
bwyllgor Partneriaeth. 
 
 
ARGYMHELLION/PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL GOFYNNOL: 
 
Bod y Cyd-bwyllgor yn cymeradwyo'r Cynllun Busnes ar gyfer 2023-24. 
 
RHESYMAU:  
 
Sicrhau bod blaenoriaethau rhanbarthol yn cael eu cyflawni yn unol â 
disgwyliadau cyllido RCG. 
 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Ian Altman 
 

Swydd:  
Swyddog Arweiniol, 
Partneriaeth 
 

Rhif Ffôn:  
 
E-bost: 
ian.altman@partneriaeth.cymru 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 69

Eitem Rhif  8



                                                                

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

PARTNERIAETH JOINT COMMITTEE 
23 JUNE 2023 

 

PARTNERIAETH STRATEGIC PLAN / BUSINESS PLAN 
2023-24 

 
BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The Strategic Plan for 2023-26 has been developed to give an overview of priority areas in the 
medium term linked to areas of funding from Welsh Government. 
 
The areas identified as priorities are: 
 
 
Priority 1  Support all schools and educational settings to 

design and deliver their own high quality equitable 
curriculum.  
 

Priority 2  Embed principles and processes which underpin 
educational equity in all schools and educational 
settings.  
 

Priority 3  Support schools and educational settings to develop 
a range of research and enquiry skills as a key 
part of their professional learning. 
STEM. 

Priority 4  Provide career pathways for leaders, practitioners 
and support staff at all levels of the system. 

 
The Business Plan for 2023-24 also reflects these priorities and has additional measurable targets 
to ensure monitoring and evaluation processes are robust and support Welsh Government termly 
reporting requirements linked to: 
 
Intent 
Implementation 
Impact 
 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Yes 

 
 
 
 
 
 

IMPLICATIONS 

Tudalen 70



                                                                

 
 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal  Finance  Risk Management Issues  Staffing Implications 

NONE NONE YES YES YES 

1. Finance 
 
Lines in Business Plan are linked to Welsh Government funding. 

 
2. Risk Management 

 
The Business Plan includes areas related to the risk management process. 

 
3. Staffing Implications 

 
The Business Plan reflects the current capacity within the organisation and 
additional support will be discussed with Directors of Education when 
appropriate. 

 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
N/A 
 

 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection  

N/A N/A N/A 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 71



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



STRATEGIC PLAN
PARTNERSHIP WORKING TO 
ACHIEVE EXCELLENCE FOR ALL

PARTNERIAETH

20
23

-2
6 DRAFT

Tudalen 73



DELIVERY Success will depend upon working with our 
partners in the following areas:

This strategy is ambitious and 
delivering the priorities will be 
a challenge and success will 
depend upon us working closely 
with our partners. We need to 
be confident that our strategic 
plan and operational delivery 
provides value for money, avoids 
duplication and has a positive 
impact in our schools and 
educational settings. In addition, 
we will ensure that our provision 
is bilingual.

This strategic plan is 
underpinned by a series of 
operational plans which include 
metrics for evaluation and 
success criteria. 

Area 1: Collaboration
• Ensure that information and intelligence is shared

effectively between Partneriaeth and School
Improvement Partners in order to target resources.

• Ensure the co-construction of professional learning
with all stakeholders with a commitment to co-
delivery when appropriate and advantageous to do so.

Area 2: Engagement
• Increase awareness, through agreed communication

channels, of Partneriaeth’s professional learning and
support offer.

• Ensure that every effort is made to engage with all
schools and educational settings across the region
during the Business Plan cycle.

Area 3: Evaluation
• Ensure that the agreed evaluation process is

embedded in all professional learning.
• Develop effective and agreed mean sample impact on

the learner.
• Ensure that all evaluations feed into Partneriaeth’s

self-evaluation cycle.

Our Strategic Priorities 2023-2026

This strategic plan sets out the priorities for Partneriaeth over a three-year period and aligns with  national 
priorities as identified in ‘Our National Mission: High Standards and Aspirations for All’.  This plan also 
supports local priorities and has been developed in consultation with School Improvement Partners; Head 
Teachers and Partneriaeth Directors.

Partneriaeth has identified 4 high-level strategic priorities for the period of this Strategic Plan which are:

Priority 1 Support all schools and educational settings to design and deliver their own 
high quality equitable curriculum.

Priority 2 Embed principles and processes which underpin educational equity in all 
schools and educational settings.

Priority 3 Support schools and educational settings to develop a range of research and 
enquiry skills as a key part of their professional learning.

Priority 4 Provide career pathways for leaders, practitioners and support staff at all 
levels of the system.

DRAFT

Tudalen 74



Our Strategic Priorities 2023-2026

PRIORITY 1 We will:

Support all schools and 
educational settings to design 
and deliver their own high quality 
equitable curriculum.

Our aim is that all learners will 
experience high quality teaching 
and learning which enables them 
to make progress and develop 
as:
• Ambitious, capable learners
• Enterprising, creative

contributors
• Ethical, informed citizens
• Healthy, confident individuals

i. �Continue to support the Curriculum Design  and
Review process through a tiered (bespoke,
targeted, universal) programme of co-constructed
asynchronous and synchronous professional
learning.

ii. �Ensure that clusters are supported to develop a
shared understanding of progression on a 3-16
continuum.

iii. �Collaborate with stakeholders and partners to
identify and share arrangements for assessment
which are embedded in day-to-day practice and
inform planning.

iv. �Develop, co-construct and co-deliver a
professional learning offer, informed by the needs
of our schools and educational settings, focussed
on high quality teaching and learning, including
Post-16.

v. �Engage with stakeholders to design co-contruct
and co-deliver a programme of support for schools
and educational settings focussing on developing
cross curricular skills.

vi. �Continue to work with LAs to co-construct a
strategy to support high-quality teaching and
learning of Welsh in all schools and educational
settings and support the Cymraeg 2050 agenda.

PRIORITY 2 We will:

Embed principles and processes 
which underpin educational 
equity in all schools and 
educational settings.

Our aim is that personal or social 
circumstances are not obstacles 
to achieving educational 
potential and that all schools and 
educational settings have high 
aspirations for all learners.

i. �Continue to support schools and educational
settings to understand how to mitigate the impact
of poverty on engagement, achievement and
attainment.

ii. �Continue to support schools and educational
settings to understand how to mitigate the impact
of trauma on engagement, achievement and
attainment.

iii. �Work with key partners to embed evidence based
universal approaches to promote positive health
and well-being.

DRAFT

Tudalen 75



Our Strategic Priorities 2023-2026

PRIORITY 3 We will:

Support schools and educational 
settings to develop a range 
of research and enquiry skills 
as a key part of their own 
professional learning.

Our aim is to enable schools and 
educational settings across the 
region to use enquiry to establish 
and maintain a rhythm of 
learning, innovation and change.

i. �Support the growth of networks of schools and
educational settings to develop a range of enquiry
skills by leading enquiries in their own settings.

ii. �Promote collaboration across our schools and
educational settings to explore and develop
approaches to digital learning design.

iii. �Drive a system whereby schools and educational
settings are willing to take risks, experiment and
innovate their practice to raise standards.

iv. �As a region engage in forms of enquiry to
investigate and extend our practice.

PRIORITY 4 We will:

Provide career pathways for 
leaders, practitioners and 
support staff at all levels of the 
system.

Our aim is to support all 
professionals to progress along 
their own career pathway and to 
develop and retain future leaders 
across the system.

i. �Deliver the Teaching Assistant Learning Pathway
(TALP)

ii. �Provide Early Career Support/Induction for Newly
Qualified Teachers (NQTs)

iii. �Run the Future Leadership Programme

DRAFT

Tudalen 76



BUSINESS PLAN
PARTNERIAETH

20
23

-2
4

PARTNERSHIP WORKING TO
ACHIEVE EXCELLENCE FOR ALL

T
udalen 77



Vision
Partneriaeth Mission Statement

Partnership working to achieve excellence for all.

Our Aims

1.	 We lead schools and settings to design, develop and deliver a curriculum with equity and excellence at its core.

2.	 We support schools and settings to become ambitious, self-improving learning organisations.

3.	 We provide professional learning and opportunities for collaboration in order to develop strong and supportive partnerships.

Introduction
Partneriaeth is a regional collaborative arrangement designed to improve outcomes for all learners in Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire and Swansea. 

All activity and support provided by Partneriaeth has to clearly contribute to the delivery of Welsh Government’s aspirations and priorities for schools and education in line 
with Our National Mission: high standards and aspirations for all. It also has to align with: Journey to curriculum roll-out;  Curriculum for Wales: Implementation Plan; School 
Improvement Guidance; National Professional Learning Entitlement;  the Professional Standards and  the Schools as Learning Organisations model.

This Business Plan has been developed in partnership with the 3 Local Authorities to ensure alignment of strategic priorities and avoid duplication of services. 
 
Partneriaeth is fully committed to promoting the Welsh Language which is a central element of the region’s identity.

T
udalen 78



Regional Overview
Partneriaeth is committed to partnership working and collaboration. Each Senior Strategic Adviser is directly linked with one of the Local Authorities which 
ensures that Partneriaeth can provide a range of support responsive to local needs. 

maintained
schools in 
the region

61 109
93

17.98% of the total 
schools in Wales

17.1%

80,580
the number 

of pupils 
within the 
region in 

2022

T
udalen 79



Partneriaeth Strategic Priorities 2023-26
Partneriaeth Strategic Priorities 2023-26

Partneriaeth have identified 4 high-level strategic priorities for 2023-2026:

1.	 Support all schools and settings to design and deliver their own high quality equitable curriculum.

2.	 Embed principles and processes which underpin educational equity in all schools and settings.

3.	 Support schools and settings to develop a range of research and enquiry skills as a key part of their professional learning.

4.	 Provide career pathways for leaders, practitioners and support staff at all levels of the system.

Success will depend upon:

Collaboration
 

•	 Partneriaeth will ensure that information and intelligence is shared effectively between Partneriaeth and School Improvement Partners in order to target resources.

•	 Partneriaeth will ensure the co-construction of professional learning with all stakeholders with a commitment to co-delivery when appropriate and advantageous to 

do so.

Engagement

•	 Partneriaeth will strive to increase awareness of the professional learning and support offer through agreed communication channels.

•	 Partneriaeth will ensure that every effort is made to engage with all schools and settings across the region during the Business Plan cycle.

Evaluation

•	 Partneriaeth will ensure that the agreed evaluation process is embedded in all professional learning.

•	 Partneriaeth will develop effective and agreed means to sample impact on the learner.

•	 Partneriaeth will ensure that all evaluations feed into the self-evaluation cycle.

T
udalen 80



Local Authority Strategic Priorities
Cyngor Sir Penfro / Pembrokeshire County Council

1.	 Covid recovery & disadvantaged learners support (inc. Literacy & Numeracy) 
2.	 Teaching and Learning (evidence-based approaches) 
3.	 Curriculum for Wales development & cluster working 
4.	 School Leadership 
5.	 Directorate & school evaluation processes 

Cyngor Sir Gâr / Carmarthenshire County Council

1.	 Inclusion and Engagement: Ensure a proactive, inclusive education system. 
2.	 Teaching and Learning: Ensure excellent progress for all learners. 
3.	 Safeguarding Children: Ensure all children and young people are happy, safe and thrive, overcoming poverty. 
4.	 Wellbeing: Foster very good mental and physical health for all. 
5.	 Leadership: Ensure that aspirational Leadership leads to excellent progress for learners. 
6.	 Sustainable Communities: Deliver high standards of education in increasingly modern and sustainable community focused 

environments.
7.	 Welsh: Ensure successful bilingual & multilingual development for all. 
8.	 Departmental Operations: Provide high quality support services that impact on the efficiency of the education system.

Cyngor Abertawe / Swansea Council

1.	 Inclusion:  Embed universal provision for additional needs, specialist places for additional needs and a whole school approach to 
emotional health and psychological wellbeing. 

2.	 Welsh Language Skills:  Embed  the Siarter Iaith to all schools. 
3.	 Leadership Support: Maintain and support effective leadership, including governance, across all schools. 
4.	 Teaching Support: Support literacy, numeracy, and digital competence to maintain, restore and accelerate learners’ skills. 
5.	 Designing Destinations: Support vocational learning, post-16 curriculum collaboration, careers and work-related education. 
6.	 Equity in Education Strategy:  Embed trauma informed practice across all schools, actions to reduce the impact of poverty on learners 

and meet our responsibilities as corporate parents. 
7.	 New and Better Schools: Provide an efficient and effective educational infrastructure to meet current and future demands for school 

places. 

T
udalen 81



Partneriaeth Team

T
udalen 82



Business Plan Activities 2023-24

1.i	 We will continue to support the Curriculum Design and Review process through a tiered programme of asynchronous and synchronous professional 	
	 learning. 
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 All schools and educational settings who engaged with the Partneriaeth and national Professional Learning Offer demonstrate a stronger 		
	 understanding of the design and implementation process. 

	9 Partneriaeth aligned its work with, and promoted, National Networks in relation to developing a shared understanding of curriculum design. 
	9 All schools and educational settings who engaged with the Partneriaeth RSE PL Offer are more confident in the planning and delivery of 		

	 developmentally appropriate RSE in line with the RSE code. 
	9 Schools and educational settings increasingly include International Languages as part of their curriculum provision.

PRIORITY 1

SUPPORT ALL SCHOOLS AND EDUCATIONAL SETTINGS 
TO DESIGN AND DELIVER THEIR OWN HIGH QUALITY 
EQUITABLE CURRICULUM.

Our aim is that all learners will experience high quality teaching and learning 
which enables them to make progress and develop as:  

•	 Ambitious, capable learners  
•	 Enterprising, creative contributors 
•	 Ethical, informed citizens  
•	 Healthy, confident individuals 

This section details the strategic intent for this business plan cycle and outlines the success criteria for each area. These success criteria relate 
directly to the delivery requirements specified in 2023-24 RCG and all progress against them will be closely monitored and reported on. 

T
udalen 83



1.ii	 We will ensure that clusters are supported to develop a shared understanding of progression on a 3-16 continuum.  
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 All schools and educational settings who engaged with the Partneriaeth and national Professional Learning Offer demonstrate a shared 		
	 understanding of progression of learners across the 3-16 continuum (including effective transition). 

	9 Partneriaeth aligned its work with, and promoted, National Networks in relation to developing a shared understanding of progression. 
	9 A stronger model of cluster working across the region as a result of Partneriaeth engagement with all clusters, including PRU and Special 		

	 School networks. 

1.iii	 We will collaborate with partners to identify and share arrangements for assessment which are embedded in day-to-day practice and inform 		
	 planning.  
  
Success Criteria: 

	9 All schools and educational settings who engaged with the Partneriaeth and national Professional Learning Offer demonstrate an 			 
	 understanding of assessment arrangements as an integral part of curriculum design and for the purpose of supporting individual learner 		
	 progression.

	9 Partneriaeth aligned its work with, and promoted, National Networks in relation to developing a shared understanding of assessment 		
	 arrangements. 

	9 Funded schools and educational settings have developed their understanding of assessment through Camau I’r Dyfodol project and supported 	
	 others to engage with this learning. 

1.iv	 We will develop and co-construct a professional learning offer focussed on high quality teaching and learning, including Post-16.  
  
Success Criteria: 

	9 Support provided for embedding high-quality, ongoing day to day assessment within teaching and learning. 

Business Plan Activities 2023-24

T
udalen 84



	9 Support provided for the use of assessment data as an integral part of planning, self-evaluation and reporting. 
	9 Leadership programme for sixth form leaders including engagement with the VESPA mindset delivered. 
	9 Support provided for development and delivery of the new Advanced Welsh Baccalaureate. 
	9 Partneriaeth aligned work with, and promoted, National Networks in relation to teaching and learning. 

1.v	 We will engage with stakeholders to design and deliver a programme of support for schools and settings focussing on developing cross curricular 	
	 skills.  
  
Success Criteria: 

	9 Professional learning and support offered to all schools and educational settings to develop learner progression in cross curricular skills within 	
	 Curriculum for Wales. 

	9 Direction and guidance provided to schools and educational settings to meet learners needs on computational thinking, coding and emerging 	
	 digital technologies. 

	9 Guidance developed and support provided on teaching the cross curricular skills across the Areas of Learning and Experience.  

1.vi	 We will continue to work with LAs to support high-quality teaching and learning of Welsh in all settings and support the Cymraeg 2050 agenda.  
  
Success Criteria: 

	9 Developed and delivered a professional learning offer to support local authorities to implement the Welsh in Education Strategic Plans.
	9 Opportunities and support provided to leaders to enable them to strategically plan to address the objectives of Cymraeg 2050. 

Business Plan Activities 2023-24

T
udalen 85



Business Plan Activities 2023-24

2.i	 We will continue to support schools and educational settings to understand how to mitigate the impact of poverty on engagement, achievement and 	
	 attainment.
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 Schools and educational settings that have engaged in the Raising the Achievement of Disadvantaged Youngsters (RADY) , Thinking Differently 	
	 or Poverty Proofing programmes demonstrate systemic changes that improve  engagement, achievement and attainment of targeted learners, 	
	 families and wider communities. 

2.ii	 We will continue to support schools and settings to understand how to mitigate the impact of trauma on engagement, achievement and attainment.
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 Increased engagement in trauma informed training. 
	9 Schools and educational settings that have engaged with professional learning related to being trauma informed demonstrate a better 		

	 understanding of trauma and how to support learners to overcome barriers facing these learners. 

2.iii	 We will work with key partners to embed evidence based universal approaches to promote positive health and well-being.
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 Partnership working further developed to embed evidence based universal approaches to promote positive health and well-being. 

PRIORITY 2

EMBED PRINCIPLES AND PROCESSES WHICH UNDERPIN 
EDUCATIONAL EQUITY IN ALL SCHOOLS AND EDUCATIONAL SETTINGS. 

Our aim is that personal or social circumstances are not obstacles to 
achieving educational potential and that all schools and settings have high 
aspirations for all learners.

T
udalen 86



PRIORITY 3

SUPPORT SCHOOLS AND EDUCATIONAL SETTINGS TO DEVELOP A 
RANGE OF RESEARCH AND ENQUIRY SKILLS AS A KEY PART OF THEIR 
OWN PROFESSIONAL LEARNING. 

Our aim is to enable schools and educational settings across the region to 
use enquiry to establish and maintain a rhythm of learning, innovation and 
change. 

Business Plan Activities 2023-24

3.i	 We will support the growth of networks of schools to develop a range of enquiry skills by leading enquiries in their own settings.
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 An increased number of schools and educational settings within the region engaging with NPEP (including post 16) as new, experienced or 	
	 lead enquiry schools  

	9 Schools and educational settings funded to engage with National Pedagogy Network and increased engagement in National Pedagogy Project 	
	 activities. 

	9 Collaborated with HEIs and the other regions to identify and fund schools from the region (if selected) to participate in piloting models to 		
	 embed research and professional enquiry. 

3.ii	 We will promote collaboration across our schools and educational settings to explore and develop approaches to digital learning design. 
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 Professional learning offer developed and delivered in collaboration with Universities across Wales to support digital education and learning 	
	 design.T

udalen 87



3.iii	 We will drive a system where schools and educational settings are willing to take risks, experiment and innovate their practice to raise standards. 
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 Schools and educational settings supported to engage with the professional standards for teaching and leadership and for assisting teaching. 
	9 Engagement of schools and educational settings with SLO implementation demonstrates an upward trend building on the Partneriaeth SLO 	

	 working group 2022-23. 

Business Plan Activities 2023-24

T
udalen 88



PRIORITY 4

PROVIDE CAREER PATHWAYS FOR LEADERS, PRACTITIONERS AND 
SUPPORT STAFF AT ALL LEVELS OF THE SYSTEM.

Our aim is to support all professionals to progress along their own career 
pathway and to develop and retain future leaders across the system. 

Business Plan Activities 2023-24

4.i	 We will deliver the Teaching Assistant Learning Pathway (TALP)
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 Collaborated with other members of the TA professional learning steering group to refine and deliver the TALP. 
	9 Delivered the Aspiring Higher Level Teaching Assistant Programme that leads to the assessment of the Higher Level Teaching Assistant (HLTA) 	

	 Status. 
	9 National professional learning programmes linked to key priorities, for example equity, developed and delivered. 

4.ii	 We will provide Early Career Support/Induction for Newly Qualified Teachers (NQTs). 
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 National induction professional learning programme for NQTs, induction mentors and external verifiers further developed. 
	9 Camau Nesaf and Camau Pellach programmes further developed as national professional learning programmes for teachers who have 		

	 completed induction. 

4.iii	 We will run the Future Leadership Programme for Aspiring Leaders 
 
Success Criteria: 

	9 All participants offered the support of a learning coach or mentor. 
	9 Newly Appointed and Acting Head teacher Programmes delivered. 

T
udalen 89



	9 Aspiring Heads Programme providing access to the NPQH assessment delivered.

4.iv	 We will run the Future Leadership Programme for NPQH 

Success Criteria: 

	9 Candidates for NPQH prioritised appropriately taking into account pressure points and areas of need (such as the need for Welsh-medium 	
	 heads, special schools. 

	9 NPQH quality threshold maintained. 
	9 NPQH programmed refined in line with recommendations for review.  

Business Plan Activities 2023-24

T
udalen 90



                                                                

 
CYD-BWYLLGOR PARTNERIAETH 

23 MEHEFIN 2023 
 

COFRESTR RISGIAU 
 

DIBEN:  
 

Hysbysu'r Cyd-bwyllgor am y proffil risgiau rhanbarthol, a rhoi diweddariad ar 
unrhyw ddiwygiadau. 
 
ARGYMHELLION/PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL GOFYNNOL: 
 
Bod y Cyd-bwyllgor yn nodi'r proffil risgiau, ac yn derbyn yr adroddiad. 
 
 
RHESYMAU:  
 
Trefniadau Llywodraethu, Rheoli Risgiau. 
 
 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Ian Altman 
 

Swydd:  
Swyddog Arweiniol, 
Partneriaeth 
 

Rhif Ffôn:  
 
E-bost: 
ian.altman@partneriaeth.cymru 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 91

Eitem Rhif  9



                                                                

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
PARTNERIAETH JOINT COMMITTEE 

23 JUNE 2023 
 

 
RISK REGISTER 

 
BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The report outlines the overall risk profile of the region. The heat map indicates the following 
risks as scoring: 

 
 

Medium Probability and High Impact 
 

• Timeliness of Welsh Government Funding 
• Lack of clarity regarding functions of Partneriaeth 

 
The register contains a strengthened narrative around the risk linked to Curriculum for Wales. 
The register has reduced the risk 2 in the light of inspections for Swansea and follow-up in 
Pembrokeshire during the cycle of this Business Plan. 
 
                                                                                                                                                                               
Risk Register will be developed to reflect the BP priorities for 2023-24 for presentation at autumn JC. 
 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Yes 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

 
 

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal  Finance  Risk Management Issues  Staffing Implications 

NONE NONE YES YES NO 

1. Finance 
There is a section on the register dedicated to Financial Risks. 

2. Risk Management 
The Risk Register is the primary risk analysis mechanism in Partneriaeth’s 
governance system.  

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 92



                                                                

 
CONSULTATIONS 

N/A 
 

 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection  

N/A N/A N/A 
 

 

Tudalen 93



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Risk Register   

 
April 2022 - March 2023 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Tudalen 95



 

2 
 

Table	of	Contents	
1. Introduction ___________________________________________________________ 3 

1.1. Partneriaeth’s Vision _______________________________________________________ 3 

1.2. Partneriaeth’s Priorities: ____________________________________________________ 3 

1.3. Risk Evaluation Matrix _____________________________________________________ 5 

1.4. Impact assessment criteria __________________________________________________ 6 

1.5. Probability assessment criteria ______________________________________________ 7 

2. Corporate Business Risks _________________________________________________ 8 

3. Index and Summary of Residual Business Risk Scores __________________________ 9 

3.1. Central Risks _____________________________________________________________ 9 

3.2. Financial Risks ____________________________________________________________ 9 

3.3. Governance Risks ________________________________________________________ 10 

4. Contextualisation ______________________________________________________ 11 

5. Central Risks __________________________________________________________ 13 
1. Failure to deliver the 6 priority areas of Partneriaeth’s Business Plan ________________________ 13 
2. Failure to delivery against LA priorities included in Partneriaeth’s Business Plan _______________ 14 
3. Failure to support Local Authorities in relevant areas as they engage with Estyn _______________ 16 
4. Data Protection __________________________________________________________________ 17 
5. Partneriaeth found not to provide Value for Money _____________________________________ 18 

6. Financial Risks ________________________________________________________ 19 
1. Timeliness of Welsh Government Funding _____________________________________________ 19 
2. Failure to comply with Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant (RCSIG) T&Cs ___________ 20 

7. Risks associated with Governance ________________________________________ 21 
1. Lack of clarity regarding functions of Partneriaeth _______________________________________ 21 
2. Lack of Communication with all stakeholders ___________________________________________ 22 
3. Partneriaeth Governance __________________________________________________________ 23 

 
  

Tudalen 96



 

3 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

Partneriaeth’s Risk Register contains the strategic business risks (threats) to the 
achievement of Partneriaeth’s Vision and Aims as outlined within the Partneriaeth Business 
Plan. 

1.1. Partneriaeth’s Vision 
Mission Statement  
Partnership working to achieve excellence for all.  
  
Our Aims  
1) We lead schools and settings to design, develop and deliver a curriculum with equity and 
excellence at its core.  
2) We support schools and settings to become ambitious, self-improving learning 
organisations.  
3) We provide professional learning and opportunities for collaboration in order to develop 
strong and supportive partnerships.  
 

1.2. Partneriaeth’s Priorities: 
Priority 1 – Curriculum & Assessment - Supporting a national curriculum with equity & 
excellence at its core that sets high standards for all learners 
Priority 2 – Developing a high-quality education profession - improving the teaching & 
learning in our schools 
Priority 3 – Leadership - supporting inspirational leaders working collaboratively to raise 
standards. Includes future leadership & professional networks 
Priority 4 – Strong & inclusive schools committed to excellence, equity & well-being 
Priority 5 – Supporting a self-improving system - supporting a system in which the 
education profession have the skills, capacity & agency to continually learn & improve their 
practice 
Priority 6 – Ensure that Partneriaeth has strong governance and effective business and 
operational support that provides value for money 
 
Partneriaeth’s risks (threats) are scored against the risk (threats) evaluation matrix shown on 
page 5, using the impact and probability criteria shown on pages 6 and 7. 
Partneriaeth’s Risk Register is a live document which is subject to regular review by 
Partneriaeth’s senior leadership team. New risks identified or escalated are included in the 
updated Partneriaeth Risk Register and is then formally reviewed on a quarterly basis by the 
Partneriaeth Joint Committee. 
 
Partneriaeth risks are scored at inherent level (before any control measures are 
applied) and at residual level (after control measures have been applied).  
Although control measures are applied, they may not be sufficient to reduce the residual 
score if external factors (outside of officer control) still have a high influence on the 
probability of the risk occurring or the impact should it occur. The heat map on page 8 shows 
the highest residual risks on Partneriaeth’s Risk Register. 
Each risk has its own table showing the inherent and residual risk score along with 
the tolerance for the risk.  
 
To assist with the monitoring of changes to Partneriaeth’s Risk Register between reviews, 

Tudalen 97



 

4 
 

the risk score table for each risk includes a movement column which shows if the residual 
risk has increasedñ, decreasedò, or stayed the sameó.Where there is no arrow icon, this 
process will commence from the report presented to the next Joint Committee.  
 
The Corporate Risk Register for April 2022 - March 2023 contains 10 business risks 
(threats), each of which is indexed on page 9 and 10, and shown in detail on pages 13 to 22.   
 
 
Risks are categorised under one of the four following groupings 
 

1. Central Risks 
2. Financial Risks 
3. Risks associated with Review and Reform 
4. Risks associated with Failure to respond to Covid-19 

 
Every risk is explained in seven steps: 

• Event 
• Description of Risk 
• Background 
• Objectives at Risk 
• Risk Control Measures 
• Risk Owner 
• Risk Scores 

 
 

Tudalen 98



 

5 
 

1.3. Risk Evaluation Matrix 
 

Threats 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

  

Very High 
 

Low 
(4) 

Medium 
(8) 

High 
(12) 

High 
(16) 

High 
 

Low 
(3) 

Medium 
(6) 

Medium 
(9) 

High 
(12) 

Medium 
 

Low 
(2) 

Low 
(4) 

Medium 
(6) 

Medium 
(8) 

Low  
 

Low 
(1) 

Low 
(2) 

Low 
(3) 

Low 
(4) 

  Low 
 

Medium 
 

High 
 

Very High 
 

  Impact 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 99



 

6 
 

1.4. Impact assessment criteria  

 
(Review the risk against the following criteria, chose the one that best describes the impact and rate accordingly from 1 – 4) 
 

Rating Descripti
on 

Financial 
Capital / 
Revenue 

Political Service / Operations 

4 Very High   >40% to <100% 
budget 

• Political intervention 
required.  
 

• Catastrophic fall in service quality and statutory service 
standards are not met. 

• Long term interruption to service provision. 
• Report from regulator or inspectorate requiring major 

project for corrective action. 

3 High  >15% to <40% 
budget 

• Major adverse political 
reaction.  

• Major impact to service quality, statutory service 
standards are not met, long term disruption to operations, 
multiple partnerships affected.  

• Report of breach to regulator with immediate correction 
to be implemented. 

2 Medium  >5 % to < 15 % 
budget 

• Significant adverse regional 
political reaction.  

• Significant fall in service quality, major partnership 
relationships strained, serious disruption to statutory 
service standards.  

• Reportable incident to regulator(s). 
1 Low  < 5%  budget • Minor adverse political 

reaction and complaints 
which are quickly remedied. 

• Minor impact to service quality, minor statutory service 
standards are not met. 
 

< = Less than   
> =More than  

T
udalen 100



 

7 
 

1.5. Probability assessment criteria  

 
(Select one of the ratings from the definitions below)  
Rating  Annual Frequency  Probability 

Description Definition  Description Definition 
4 Very High More than once in last  

12 months 
 Very High >85 %  chance of 

occurrence 
3 High Once in last 2 years  High >45% to <85 % chance of 

occurrence  
2 Medium Once in 3 years up to 

10 years 
 Medium 

 

>15% to < 45 % chance of 
occurrence 

1 Low 

 

Once in 10 years   Low 

 

<15 % chance of occurrence 
 

< = Less than   
> =More than  

 
  

T
udalen 101



 

8 
 

2. CORPORATE BUSINESS RISKS 
The heat map below summarises the highest residual risks contained on 
Partneriaeth’s Risk Register. 
 
 

H
ig

h 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

  
9 

 
12 

M
ed

iu
m

 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 6 
• Timeliness of Welsh 

Government Funding 
• Lack of clarity regarding 

functions of Partneriaeth 

8 
 

 

 

High 
Impact 

Very High 
Impact 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 102



 

9 
 

3. INDEX AND SUMMARY OF RESIDUAL BUSINESS RISK SCORES 

3.1. Central Risks 

No. Risk Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty
 

Im
pa

ct
 

Re
si

du
al

 
Ri

sk
 

Movement 
ñòó Page 

1 Failure to deliver the 6 
priority areas of 
Partneriaeth’s Business 
Plan 

1 4 4 ó 13 

2 Failure to deliver against 
LA priorities included in 
Partneriaeth’s Business 
Plan 

1 3 3 ó 14 

3 Failure to support LAs in 
relevant areas during 
their engagement with 
Estyn 

1 3 3 ò 15 

4 Data Protection 1 4 4 ó 17 

5 Partneriaeth found not to 
provide Value for Money 

1 4 4 ó 18 

3.2. Financial Risks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

No. Risk Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty
 

Im
pa

ct
 

Re
si

du
al

 
Ri

sk
 

Movement 
ñòó Page 

1 Timeliness of Welsh 
Government Funding 

2 3 6 ó 19 

2 Failure to comply with 
RCSIG T&Cs 

1 4 4 ó 20 

Tudalen 103



 

10 
 

3.3. Governance Risks 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

No. Risk Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty
 

Im
pa

ct
 

Re
si

du
al

 
Ri

sk
 

Movement 
ñòó Page 

1 Lack of clarity regarding 
functions of Partneriaeth 

2 3 6 ó 21 

2 Lack of Communication 
with all stakeholders 

1 3 3 ó 22 

3 Partneriaeth Governance 1 4 4 ó 
 

23 

Tudalen 104



 

11 
 

4. CONTEXTUALISATION 
 

Partneriaeth strives to deliver a consistent school improvement service, focused on challenge 
and support strategies that improve teaching and learning in classrooms and lead to improved 
pupil attainment and progress in all schools.  
  
Our aim is to build school capacity through support, challenge and intervention so that schools 
become self-improving, resilient organisations.  We facilitate school led support and 
intervention programmes at a peer to peer, department to department and school to school 
level according to the area of need that has been identified within the school.  
  
The region will build school capacity through continuing support, challenge and intervention to 
become self-improving, resilient organisations which continually improve outcomes for 
learners.  This regional strategy for a self-improving system is well underway and is firmly 
founded in the principles of school-to-school improvement.    
  
Partneriaeth is committed to the Welsh Language and its prosperity, and the language is an 
integral part of all the administrative procedures of the organisation. We consider Welsh to be 
a central element of the identity of the region, and we will continue to do as much as we can 
to promote the language and its use.    
 
Partneriaeth is governed by a legally constituted Joint Committee whose membership is 
made up of relevant officers from Partneriaeth and the three partner Local Authorities, with 
the three Council Leaders being voting members. The Joint committee is advised by 
scrutiny, strategic, operational and stakeholder groups, as detailed below: 
 
Governance 
Group 

 
Members 

Joint 
Committee 

• 3 Leaders. Voting member. 
• 3 Cabinet Members for Education. These will be non-voting members. 
• 3 Chief Executives with a Lead Chief Executive, non-voting. 
• 3 Directors of Education with a Lead Director, non-voting. 
• Lead Officer Partneriaeth 
• S151 Officer and Monitoring Officer, as required. 
• External observers and advisers, on request – Estyn, WG, Audit 

Wales. 
• Chair of scrutiny Councillors’ group, as non-voting observer – TBC 

Scrutiny 
Councillor 
Group 

• 3 Education Scrutiny Chairs  
• 3 Education Scrutiny Vice Chairs 
• 3 Directors of Education to attend together at least once per annum 
• Lead Officer Partneriaeth 
• Chair of Joint Committee to attend at least once per annum 
• External observers and advisers, on request 

Strategic 
Group* 

• 3 Directors of Education 
• Lead Officer Partneriaeth 
• 3 Partneriaeth Strategic Advisers  

Operations 
Group** 

• 3 local authority Lead School Improvement Officers  
• Lead Officer Partneriaeth 
• Partneriaeth Strategic Advisers, as required according to business plan 

priorities 

Tudalen 105



 

12 
 

Stakeholder 
Group 

• Lead Officer Partneriaeth  
• 3 Partneriaeth Senior Strategic Advisers linked to each local authority 

– to be appointed, we will have one linked to Swansea. 
• 12 headteachers covering primary, secondary, special and pupil 

referral unit sectors  
 
 

Tudalen 106



 

13 
 

5. CENTRAL RISKS 

1. FAILURE TO DELIVER THE 6 PRIORITY AREAS OF PARTNERIAETH’S 
BUSINESS PLAN 
 

Description of Risk 
The Partneriaeth Business Plan is not delivered in its entirety and to a sufficiently high 
standard, against the following priorities: 

1. Curriculum & Assessment  
2. Developing a high-quality education profession 
3. Leadership  
4. Strong & inclusive schools  
5. Supporting a self-improving system  
6. Strong governance and effective business and operational support  

 
There is an increased risk linked to Priority 1 of schools not being sufficiently supported to 
implement Curriculum for Wales. If schools are not provided with appropriate and targeted 
support, the implementation will not be in line with national expectations.  
 

Background 
The Business Plan for 2022/23 has been written and co-constructed with LA colleagues. 
Its structure differs from previous regional business plans with Local Authority priorities 
being an integral part of the plan. As Partneriaeth is funded by the Regional Consortia 
School Improvement Grant, the plan consists of operational delivery plans for each of the 
funding lines of the grant. 
 

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
• The business plan is co-constructed by Partneriaeth officers and senior LA officers 
• A high level Business Plan is produced setting out main priorities and linking with 

LA priorities. This is supplemented by detailed operational delivery plans with 
specific key performance indicators 

• These are shared with specific stakeholders including Central Team, LA 
colleagues, schools and Joint Committee, which includes the detailed operational 
delivery plans 

• Each operational delivery plan will have a named member of SLT to lead on the 
plan, as well as named officers to deliver the plan. These will include LA officers, 
where appropriate 

• Quarterly monitoring of the business plan, including every operational delivery plan 
• Over-sight of every operational delivery plan by a member of Partneriaeth’s SLT 
• Appropriate levels of officer time are linked to each of the Business Plan priorities 

and as such greater resource is allocated to Priority 1, Realising Curriculum for 
Wales. 

 
Risk Owner 

Lead Officer, Senior Strategic Advisers, Lead Advisers 

Tudalen 107



 

14 
 

 
Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 4 12 ó 

Residual 1 4 4 ó 

Tolerance     4  

 

 

2. FAILURE TO DELIVERY AGAINST LA PRIORITIES INCLUDED IN 
PARTNERIAETH’S BUSINESS PLAN 
 

Description of Risk 
The priorities agreed with the three LAs and included in the Partneriaeth Business Plan 
are not supported to a sufficiently high standard. 
 

Background 
The relevant priorities of each of the three partner LAs are included in the Partneriaeth 
business plan. These are mapped against each operational delivery plan included in the 
business plan. 
 

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
• Quarterly monitoring of the business plan, including every operational delivery plan 
• Regular meetings between the Senior Challenge Adviser and Senior Strategic 

Officer linked with each LA  
 

Risk Owner 
Lead Officer, Senior Strategic Officers 
 

Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 3 9 ó 

Residual 1 3 3 ó 

Tudalen 108



 

15 
 

Tolerance     4  

 

  

Tudalen 109



 

16 
 

 

3. FAILURE TO SUPPORT LOCAL AUTHORITIES IN RELEVANT AREAS AS THEY 
ENGAGE WITH ESTYN 
 

Description of Risk 
Partneriaeth does not provide the required support in the relevant areas to LAs as they 
engage with Estyn 
 

Background 
Pembrokeshire have successfully been removed from an Estyn category in Autumn 2022. 
Partneriaeth supported a range of relevant priorities in the Post Inspection Action Plan 
(PIAP).  
Swansea Local Authority School Improvement Service were inspected in June 2022. 
Partneriaeth’s on-going support was recognised during the inspection. 
Carmarthenshire’s Estyn inspection to take place July 2023. 
 

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
• Regular meetings between the Senior Challenge Adviser and Senior Strategic 

Officer linked with each LA  
• Partneriaeth’s contribution to the delivery of Pembrokeshire’s PIAP is monitored 

every half-term 
• The 3 Senior Strategic Officers from Partneriaeth regularly attend relevant LA 

School Improvement meetings, such as Challenge Adviser meetings, etc. to 
facilitate a regular two-way conversation between relevant officers 

• Regular meetings between Partneriaeth’s Lead Officer and the 3 LA Directors of 
Education 
 

Risk Owner 
Lead Officer, Senior Strategic Officers 
 

Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 4 12 ó 

Residual 1 3 3 ò 

Tolerance     4  

 

  

Tudalen 110



 

17 
 

4. DATA PROTECTION 
 

Description of Risk 
Partneriaeth fails to comply with the Data Protection Act 2018, resulting in action from the 
ICO 
 

Background 
 
 

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
Data Protection guidance is detailed in section 25 of the Legal Agreement (p.23) 

• Data Processing Agreement to be added to Schedule 13 of the Legal Agreement 
• The Joint Committee shall appoint a Lead Council to assume responsibility for the 

discharge of functions on behalf of Partneriaeth, including Data Protection Officer 
Services 

• Data flow agreements exist between the 3 LAs and Partneriaeth 
• Agreement in place between constituent LAs and all schools across the region 
• Method, type of data and timings of exchange are detailed in the agreement 
• Partneriaeth staff use email and Sharepoint platform under the Hwb licence, 

provided by Welsh Government. No personal emails will be used. 
• Partneriaeth staff only use electronic device provided to them, i.e. laptop, mobile 

phone, tablet. No personal devices will be used. 
 

Risk Owner 
Lead Officer, Lead Chief Executive, Lead Director 
 

Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 4 12 ó 

Residual 1 4 4 ó 

Tolerance     4  

 

  

Tudalen 111



 

18 
 

 

5. PARTNERIAETH FOUND NOT TO PROVIDE VALUE FOR MONEY 
 

Description of Risk 
Partneriaeth is judged to not provide Value for Money (Governance and Compliance) 
 

Background 
 
 

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
 

• Schedule 4 of the Legal Agreement details the Terms of Reference for the 
Strategic Group (membership detailed on p.11). These include ensuring value for 
money within a costed business plan 

• The costed business plan will be shared with Directors and presented to the Joint 
Committee for ratification 

• Individual spending plans will be developed against every operational delivery 
plan, with a named senior officer having responsibility for each plan 

• Actual spending will be authorised by Lead Officer, Senior Strategic Officers or 
Business Support Manager 

• Robust evaluation and monitoring processes are in place 
 

Risk Owner 
Lead Officer, Section 151 Officer, Principal Accountant, Lead Director 
 

Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 4 12 ó 

Residual 1 4 4 ó 

Tolerance     4  

 

 
  

Tudalen 112



 

19 
 

6. FINANCIAL RISKS 
 

1. TIMELINESS OF WELSH GOVERNMENT FUNDING  
 

Description of Risk 
WG funding may not be timely, resulting in underspend, lateness of planning, or an inability to 
spend at the end of the financial year. 
 

Background 
 

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
• Financial forward planning with contingency arrangements so that essential implementation 

is not hindered. Indicative figures used for initial financial planning. 
• Constant communication with WG to improve expectation, and to improve timeliness of in-

year funding 
• 3-year indicative funding to be shared by WG 

 
Risk Owner 

Section 151 Officer, Lead Banker Authority and Principal Accountant 
 

Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 3 9 ó 

Residual 2 3 6 ó 

Tolerance     6  

 

  

Tudalen 113



 

20 
 

2. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REGIONAL CONSORTIA SCHOOL 
IMPROVEMENT GRANT (RCSIG) T&CS  
 

Description of Risk 
Partneriaeth fails to deliver against each funding line of the Regional Consortia School 
Improvement Grant (RCSIG). Subsequently, Welsh Government could clawback funding. 
 

Background 
 

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
• Partneriaeth’s Business Plan 2022/23, is closely aligned to the Welsh Government five 

priorities 
• As a result, the Partneriaeth’s Business Plan 2022/23, is also closely aligned to the RCSIG 
• Named members of SLT, who lead on each area of the business plan to identify areas of 

concern regarding delivery of each operational delivery plan, linked to specific grant lines 
• Quarterly monitoring of the Business Plan, resulting in early identification of areas of 

concern 
 

Risk Owner 
Lead Officer, LA Directors, Joint Committee 
 

Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 4 12 ó 

Residual 1 4 4 ó 

Tolerance     4  

 

 

  

Tudalen 114



 

21 
 

7. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH GOVERNANCE 

 

1. LACK OF CLARITY REGARDING FUNCTIONS OF PARTNERIAETH 
 

Description of Risk 
• That the revised Partneriaeth structure does not bring sufficient clarity on the function of 

Partneriaeth and its central team, leading to a lack of confidence in the revised structure 
along with loss of trust within the profession 

 
Background 

• Under previous footprint, a perceived lack of clarity regarding the difference between the 
role of the LA, and the role of the region, among the teaching community 
 

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
• Communications Strategy group established centrally with membership linked to all areas 

of the business plan. 
• Consistent and ongoing dialogue is being undertaken with LA partners to ensure 

consistency of communication through both regional and local channels 
• Attendance by Partneriaeth officers at LA meetings, e.g. Headteacher meetings, providing 

input and relevant updates 
 

Risk Owner 
Lead Officer, Lead Director 
 

Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 3 9 ó 

Residual 2 3 6 ó 

Tolerance     6  

 

  

Tudalen 115



 

22 
 

2. LACK OF COMMUNICATION WITH ALL STAKEHOLDERS  
 

Description of Risk 
That there is not sufficient, regular communication with all stakeholders, including schools, 
leaders and school practitioners, as well all middle-tier and Welsh Government colleagues 
 

Background 
•  

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
• Ongoing and effective communications provided by the Partneriaeth Team on a weekly 

basis 
• New Partneriaeth website being populated with details of the Professional Offer and 

accompanying bilingual resources, including access to previously run webinars on-demand 
• Regular attendance at all relevant meeting with middle-tier and Welsh Government 

colleagues 
• Regular attendance by Partneriaeth officers at LA meetings, e.g. Headteacher meetings, 

providing input, relevant updates 
 

Risk Owner 
Lead Officer 
 

Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 3 9 ó 

Residual 1 3 3 ó 

Tolerance     4  

 

 

  

Tudalen 116



 

23 
 

 

3. PARTNERIAETH GOVERNANCE 
 

Description of Risk 
That Partneriaeth’s operational governance arrangements do not provide transparency 
and confidence to the profession. 
 

Background 
Partneriaeth has adopted some enhanced strategic meetings which include a variety of 
key stakeholders in the decision-making process. The main aim of this change is that 
there is increased transparency around decision making and allocation of funding. Should 
these strategic meetings fail to improve transparency, there will be significant adverse 
effects. 
 
Partneriaeth has a clear schedule of regular meetings of various governance groups. 
These include Joint Committee, Scrutiny Councillor Group, Strategic Group, Operations 
Group and Stakeholder. Membership includes Cabinet Members, Directors of Education, 
Headteachers, Partneriaeth Lead Officer, senior officers from Partneriaeth, senior LA 
officers. 
 
A full list of these groups, including meeting frequency and membership is included in the 
Business Plan. 
 

Objectives at Risk 
All 
 

Risk Control Measures 
• Clear lines of reporting for all groups 
• Regular meetings of named governance groups 
• Transparency whilst sharing information with school leaders and other 

stakeholders 
 

Risk Owner 
Lead Chief Executive, Lead Officer, Directors of Education, Principal Accountant 
 

Risk Scores 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement 

  (a) (b) (a) X (b) ñòó 

Inherent 3 4 12 ó 

Residual 1 4 4 ó 

Tolerance     4  

 

Tudalen 117



 

24 
 

 

Tudalen 118


	Agenda
	3 COFNODION CYFARFOD PARTNERIAETH AR 3 CHWEFROR 2023
	5 LLYTHYR GAN GADEIRYDD GRWP CYNGHORWYR CRAFFU PARTNERIAETH
	Partneriath Scrutiny letter to Chair JC 13 Feb 23

	6 CYLLIDEB DDRAFFT PARTNERIAETH AR GYFER 2023-24 A CHYNLLUN ARIANNOL TYMOR CANOLIG DRAFFT AR GYFER 2023-24 HYD AT 2026-27
	20230530 Partneriaeth Draft Budget for 2023-24 (Revised)

	7 PERFFORMIAD PARTNERIAETH 2022-23
	Annual Report FINAL

	8 CYNLLUN STRATEGOL/CYNLLUN BUSNES PARTNERIAETH 2023-24
	1. Strategy Document 2023-26 (004)
	2. Business Plan V2 (002)

	9 COFRESTR RISGIAU
	Partneriaeth Risk Register - 2022-23 Updated April 2023




